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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | would like to present the annual report of
G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 March 2025.

RESULTS

AKANBEHE2025F3831H I FEEEX
REND R A A FEAL B 18 495,400,000
7 70 (20244 : 496,200,000 7T) ° 1R &
1,946,314,108E BT E BRI ENERK
B8 A 0.287 11l (20244 : 0.32781l) -

R B

The audited consolidated loss attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 was
approximately HK$5.4 million (2024: approximately
HK$6.2 million). Loss per share based on 1,946,314,108
ordinary shares in issue amounted to HK$0.28 cents
(2024: HK$0.32 cents).

DIVIDEND

EECE R R TERKEEE2025F3A
31H IEFEATA AR EIRL S (20244 « ) »

e 4ol

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025
(2024: HK$NiIl).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

B E2025F3A31HILFE » KREEE
B4R A W A #450,200,00058 7T © B £ F
47 A U A #749,500,00058 T 8 45 32 A0 49
700,000/ 7T 3 #491.4% » A F % 5 18
495,400,000 7T * M= F 8 F EE L
6,200,0005% 7T °

AEET2HEFBEELEFRE NN
fER - REBEKRDESENRH T2
R2024FAAMEMIE - WMAFBERE
WIHFEMHFIRR - EHNHMELA
BETAA-EWSI N AFRLSIAES
B RALAEE - B2 X IF E FE40E F
B e )R B A KRR B SR IR AR R A P

ff% 25 o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$50.2 million,
marking a modest increase of approximately HK$0.7
million or 1.4% from last year’s consolidated revenue of
approximately HK$49.5 million. The net loss for the year
amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million compared to
last year’s net loss of approximately HK$6.2 million.

The Group is mainly engaged in the operation of
Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong which specialises in
Chiu Chow cuisine. Revenue for the Group’s Tsimshatsui
branch continued to thrive after the completion of the
refurbishment works in early April 2024 and a
double-digit growth in revenue was achieved. The
elegant new decor has captivated our restaurant
patrons, drawing in more corporate and private
functions. The restaurant business also benefited from
the promotional offers under the 40th anniversary
campaign and the increase in Southeast Asian tourists.

2024/25 Annual Report 3k
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

MR- BEIEBRAKRBTENBE T
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Conversely, our Kwun Tong branch had experienced a
significant downturn in revenue. This trend was mainly
attributed to the growing preference among Hong Kong
residents for cross-border trips to mainland China for
shopping and dining, facilitated by accessible transport
options. Moreover, many people were dining out less
frequently and opting for online meal orders. Economic
pressures and rising interest rates have made consumers
increasingly cautious with their spending. Nonetheless,
we are actively exploring innovative strategies to boost
our revenue and reduce these losses.

PROSPECTS

BB AR L1 3 A S B e 4 R ADH
EERUEBEMASHELNL - RMAR L
RMERLRNSTIEREAEE—PTE
AREBERAE - RN E LB - HAFER
ARE-—FORERFBBHERE -

RERK  AEEHREIETHBX
RERIEE  BERARNARER - R
B AEBHARNBRMELAREHR
SHRMEREENEE - 4o AEE
BHEETE AN S EIIREH
g BUAEREZ TMBA - K

R K IE T B3R -

IS &

The Hong Kong food and beverage industry is adapting
to a landscape reshaped by increased travel and evolving
customer preferences. Rising food costs and a scarcity of
skilled labor further affect the Group’s profitability. In
light of these challenges, we envisage a difficult
operating environment in the year ahead.

As we move forward, our strategy will focus on
establishing and operating medium-sized restaurants,
while maintaining vigilant risk management. We will
adopt a cautious approach regarding future expansion
and capital investments. Furthermore, we aim to explore
new investment opportunities in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Australia to diversify our revenue streams and
deliver a positive return to our shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

RN R R N 5 [ — BT AN 36 0 B 3R L B
MBI MR ETBOARMNTHENE
NEEMSFNRIERETEREM -

LU=E =
FE

E 202568198
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| wish to extend my heartfelt gratitude to our dedicated
management team and staff members of the Group,
whose unwavering commitment and tireless efforts have
been instrumental to our journey this year.

Cheng Pak Man, Anita
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 19 June 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Revenue and Net Loss

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$50.2 million,
a mere increase of approximately 1.4% from the
previous year's revenue of approximately HK$49.5
million.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$5.4
million for the year under review, a decrease of
approximately HK$0.8 million compared to a net loss of
approximately HK$6.2 million for the last corresponding
year. The decrease in net loss was mainly due to the
improvement in revenue, the decrease in staff costs and
the increase in interest income.

Gross Profit

Despite the increase in revenue, the gross profit
remained at previous year's level due to the increase in
food costs by approximately 4% and the drop in profit
margin by approximately 0.7% for the year under
review.

Other Income and Loss

The increase in other income and loss of approximately
HK$0.4 million from approximately HK$1.4 million for
the year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$1.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2025 was the
combined effect of the increase in interest income of
approximately HK$1.0 million and the increase in
imputed interest income of approximately HK$0.5
million in relation to the loan from a Director and the
absence of the COVID-19-related rent concessions
(2024: approximately HK$1.1 million) for the year under
review.

Staff Costs

Total staff costs were approximately HK$23.1 million for
the year under review, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$0.3 million from the previous year’s
staff costs of approximately HK$23.4 million. Last year
staff costs were inflated by approximately HK$0.4
million additional provision on long service payments.

2024/25 Annual Report 3k



BRI

Management Discussion and Analysis

Br %5 R (48)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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Lease Rentals and Related Expenses

The adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s lease
agreements resulted in the recognition of short-term
lease rentals of approximately HK$5.5 million (2024:
approximately HK$5.6 million) and interest expenses on
lease liabilities of approximately HK$0.3 million (2024:
approximately HK$0.5 million) for the year under review.

Depreciation

The increase in depreciation for property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$0.2 million was mainly
attributable to the commencement of depreciation from
April 2024 for the leasehold improvement works of
approximately HK$1.2 million for the Group's
Tsimshatsui branch.

Other Operating Expenses

The other operating expenses of approximately HK$13.7
million for the year under review were on previous year's
level. The decrease in insurance costs of approximately
HK$0.2 million was partially offset by the increase in
credit card commission of approximately HK$0.1 million.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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BUSINESS REVIEW
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Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong

The revenue from the Group’s restaurant operation
amounted to approximately HK$50.2 million for the year
under review, representing an increase of approximately
HK$0.7 million from previous year.

The renovation of the City Chiu Chow Restaurant in
Tsimshatsui, completed in early April 2024, positively
impacted the Group’s revenue. This restaurant
experienced approximately 13% year-on-year revenue
growth during the reviewed period. Such increase in
revenue can be attributed not only to the restaurant’s
refreshed image, which has attracted more bookings for
corporate functions and private events but also to the
40th-anniversary promotional campaign and heightened
business from Southeast Asia tours during this
timeframe. Conversely, while there was an improvement
in revenue for the Tsimshatsui restaurant, it was entirely
offset by an approximate 14% vyear-on-year decline in
revenue for the Kwun Tong restaurant. The operating
environment at Yue Man Square, Kwun Tong remains
challenging and unfavourable. The substantial revenue
drop is linked to transformations in daily life and shifts
in consumer behaviour among Hong Kong residents. The
prevalence of work-from-home arrangements and a
reduction in corporate events and social gatherings have
adversely impacted lunchtime business. Additionally, a
less vibrant nightlife has directly affected the
restaurant’s dining activities. Despite efforts to introduce
a greater variety of dishes and offer discounted meal
sets, customer loss has continued. This trend is
particularly noticeable among the retired demographic
during weekdays, as well as across all age groups in
weekends and during school holidays, as residents
increasingly travel to the Greater Bay Area and other
countries. The Group has expressed concerns regarding
the decline in customer traffic at Yue Man Square, Kwun
Tong and is actively collaborating with the landlord and
the management office of the Kwun Tong restaurant to
explore various strategies to enhance sales and strive to
negotiate further rental concessions to mitigate ongoing
losses at this restaurant.

2024/25 Annual Report 3k
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

ANEBEPR2025F3831HIRITNIE & 4
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The Group's bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$21 million as at 31 March 2025. As
the Group had no bank borrowings, the Group’s gearing
ratio was zero (defined as total bank borrowings divided
by total assets) as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.

With the cash generated from the Group’s operations in
its ordinary course of business; the funding support from
one of the Directors and the existing unutilized banking
and credit facilities, the Directors consider that the
Group has sufficient working capital for its operations.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

FRAFHRD WEI > NEIBEFEILEE M
IR EAREXREANBREEFAA -
BRARFHREREIN REAFROPESTS
WEHEREMERRESIREELEE -

S B 54 L Bx

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were
no other significant investments held, nor were there
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries during
the year under review. Apart from those disclosed in this
annual report, there were no material investments or
additions of capital assets authorised by the Board at the
date of this annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

HRAKEEEXHEABOMNHEE - &
B ROEKREEHANUETINE  IFE
EEmEHIMNERR - TERBORTIIE
METRITERAR - FEFTER -BEHE
SEYERRSAR YHEEFTEREZE

b ERIMNER R o

FREE

N =

Most of the Group’s sales, purchases, bank and cash
balances from the restaurant operations are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
certain bank deposits and a loan from a Director which
are denominated in Australian dollars. The management
would closely monitor such risk and would consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A £2025%F3H31H "EBERE B AKX
REME-

EE

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES

R2025F3AH31H » "EB#E B B E 483
A REBEBFENEEIXNA(BRIEES
B4 ) B EZ A 23,100,0005 7T (20244 -
#923,400,0003% 7T) ©
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As at 31 March 2025, the Group had approximately 83
staff. Total staff costs including Directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$23.1 million (2024:
approximately HK$23.4 million) for the year under
review.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Review of the employees’ remuneration packages is
normally conducted annually and as required from time
to time. The salary and benefit levels of the Group's
employees are competitive and individual performance is
rewarded through the Group’s bonus scheme. Other
benefits including medical coverage and mandatory
provident fund scheme are also provided to employees.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

AEBEHNBBAFENEHER /K
REVEIEL R - AERBROEE - BB
SENEREBEME  AKESE BB
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RE

The Group strives to generate positive return to preserve
values of shareholders through its sustainable business
development. For the Group’s traditional business, the
Group will try to seek growth and higher returns by
offering more innovative products and/or services to
customers, to implement more stringent cost control
measures and to apply and manage resources as
effectively as possible. In order to further enhance the
value of the Group and to achieve higher returns to the
shareholders of the Company, the longer-term approach
is to expand the income source through business
diversification. The aim is to maximize the overall returns
to the shareholders of the Company in the long run by
identifying and selecting new business opportunities
which are of great potential and include them in the
Group's existing business portfolio.

OUTLOOK

BEEBRERAEBZZLER R
e HRIRERKEFEERESFED
AEBARNERBRHAMENES - 1L
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The restaurant business will continue to serve as the
Group’s core operation. However, the continued growth
in outbound travels to the Greater Bay Area during
weekends and school holidays; rising food and service
costs as well as the shortage of skilled labour in the
Chinese restaurant industry imply that the outlook
remains challenging. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to (i) implement various promotional
campaigns to boost revenues; (ii) monitor its operating
costs closely; (iii) adopt a more cautious approach when
committing to further capital expenditure; and (iv)
review and revise its business strategies regularly, with
the aim to better positioning itself to face the upcoming
challenges and capture new investment opportunities as
they arise. Moreover, the Group has been actively
seeking suitable investment opportunities for business
diversification. The Group will explore into different
industry sectors to expand and diversify the scope of the
Group's business.

2024/25 Annual Report 3k
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The Board acknowledges the importance and benefits of
good corporate governance and strives to manage the
Company and the business in accordance with the
guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) for effective corporate
governance emphasising transparency, fairness, integrity
and accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules as its own corporate governance
code. The Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2025 except for code provision C.2.1 in
respect of the role separation of the chairman and the
chief executive and code provision C.3.3 in respect of
the letters of appointment for directors.

Code provision C.2.1 sets out that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Cheng Hop Fai assumed the role of both the
chairman and the managing Director (equivalent to the
role of a chief executive) of the Company up to the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 16 August 2024. The Board
considered that such arrangement would not result in
undue concentration of power and was, at that stage,
conducive to the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group’s strategies, thus allowing
the Group to develop its business more effectively.
Following Mr. Cheng Hop Fai’s retirement as the
chairman of the Board and Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita’s
succession as the chairperson of the Board and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily's succession as the managing
Director on 16 August 2024, the Company has complied
with code provision C.2.1.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

11



12

ML/\—/-‘-\\ =
EERME

Corporate Governance Report
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Code provision C.3.3 sets out that issuers should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The
Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
certain Directors. All Directors are, however, required to
refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and
“Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent
Non-Executive Directors” published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in performing their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. In the opinion of the
Directors, this meets the objective of code provision
C.3.3.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

ARRERA L™ ARRKKCHAE LH
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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The Board currently comprises three executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors
("INEDs"):

Executive Directors

CHENG Pak Man, Anita (Chairperson)
CHENG Pak Lai, Lily (Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

Independent Non-Executive Directors

HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew
YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny
LAW Kwok Tai

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily
are sisters and are sisters of Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita,
the chairperson of the Company. Save as aforesaid, the
Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material relationship with each other.
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All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings. In
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. Accordingly, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew will retire from
the office of Director by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer herself/himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there were six
Board meetings and one general meeting held.
Individual attendance of each of the Board members is
as follows:

HE =
Attendance
= BREXE
Board General
EEpE Name of Director Meeting Meeting
5 1 CHENG Hop Fai
(7R2024F8 H16HIERE) (retired on 16 August 2024) 1/6 11
B 83 CHENG Pak Ming, Judy 3/6 1/1
BB & CHENG Pak Man, Anita 3/6 171
BB CHENG Pak Lai, Lily 3/6 1/1
% 18 7 LAW Toe Ming
(20245816 HERE) (retired on 16 August 2024) 3/6 0/1
MR HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 6/6 11
RABE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 6/6 1/1
72 B 2= Law Kwok Tai
(FR2024F6 H19HEZT) (appointed on 19 June 2024) 4/6 11
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The members of the Board are experienced individuals
having a mix of core competencies in areas of
accounting and finance, business management, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies. The Directors are
collectively responsible for formulating and
implementing the Group’s strategies and policies,
monitoring the performance of the Group and reviewing
the corporate governance practices. The mix of
professional skills and experience of the INEDs is an
important element in the proper functioning of the
Board. Their participation in Board and committee
meetings brings independent judgment and helps to
ensure that adequate checks and balances are provided
and that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. Directors have full access to board papers and
related materials, and appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. The
Directors can also obtain independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense if they require it. The
Board delegates the day-to-day operation and
administration to the management.

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules in maintaining at all times sufficient
number of INEDs on the Board including an INED with
professional accounting and financial qualifications. The
Company has complied with rule 3.10A since 1
December 2012 and has INEDs representing at least
one-third of the Board. The Company considers all of
the INEDs are independent and has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are given equal
opportunity and channels to communicate and express
their views to the Board and have separate and
independent access to the management of the Group in
order to make informed decisions. All Directors also have
access to the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”).
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An agenda and accompanying Board/committee papers
are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notices in advance of the
meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees with sufficient details recorded of the
matters considered by the Board and Board committees
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
the Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
the Directors.

The chairman of the Board holds meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the
involvement of other Directors at least annually to
discuss any issues and concerns.

If any Director or his/her associate has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board and
the Board has determined that such conflict of interest
to be material, such matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting rather than by written
resolutions. Such Director will be required to declare his/
her interests before the meeting and abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the
mechanisms have been duly implemented and are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input
are available to the Board during the year ended 31
March 2025.

The Company did not have a formal letter of
appointment for Mr. Law Toe Ming, an INED since 1
December 1994. Other INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Chi
Yuen, Andrew, Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny and
Mr. Law Kwok Tai, entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 18 June 2019, 23 June 2021 and 19 June 2024
respectively. The term of appointment is renewable every
two years from the date of commencement unless and
until terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than two months’ prior written notice. In
accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the
Company, all Directors (including the INEDs) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
and the retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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MB®RE FINANCIAL REPORTING
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THREENEAXBEAE SRR AINFE accounting standards and statutory rules and guidelines.
Ak NP RIERELE - A A E EE The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
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relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue on a
going concern basis. The Company has also received a
statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance and review of the risk
management and internal control systems that provide
reasonable assurance on the reliability and integrity of
financial and operational information, effective and
efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and
compliance with laws and regulations. The review also
covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions.
The Group’s environmental and social governance
("ESG") management team, which consists of all
executive Directors and senior management of its major
subsidiaries, and the audit committee of the Company
conduct an annual review of the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are based on a set of policies, rules and
guidelines as outlined in the Group’s internal control
manual and governed by the following types of control
principles:

a. Organisation — to have clearly defined line of
responsibility and delegation

b. Segregation of duties — to reduce risk of intentional
manipulation or error

2024/25 Annual Report 3k



L

n BB EAREE ()

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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c. Physical Control — to restrict unauthorised access to
all kinds of assets

d. Authorisation and approval — to have clearly defined
limits for authorisations

e. Arithmetical and accounting — to ensure accuracy of
transactional records

f.  Personnel — to have qualified staff to perform
day-to-day duties

g. Supervision — to observe and closely monitor, to
identify and report on control weaknesses

h. Management — to maintain overall controls; to
manage and mitigate significant risks and to
highlight significant matters to the Board and the
audit committee

The Company has adopted the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission as its own guidelines in handling
and dissemination of inside information. Unauthorized
use of confidential information is strictly prohibited. The
Group has established procedures to identify and
evaluate events or circumstances which potentially
involve or constitute inside information. Prior to
disclosure, the Board is responsible for ensuring that any
inside information relating to the Group is kept strictly
confidential and restricting access to inside information
to a limited number of parties on a need-to-know basis.
The Group would strive to ensure disclosure of inside
information to be made in a manner that provides for
equal, timely and effective access by the public.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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The Group maintains its internal audit function which
reviews major operating and financial control and risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Board through the executive management team, the
internal control team and the audit committee had
conducted an annual review on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The internal auditors
reported directly to the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company and the audit committee is satisfied that
there has been no major shortfall in the areas of the
Company'’s internal controls and risk management systems
being evaluated and that adequate and effective internal
controls and risk management systems are in place. In view
of the foregoing, the audit committee is satisfied that the
internal audit function is independent, effective and
adequately resourced with persons with relevant
qualifications and experience, and has appropriate standing
to discharge its responsibilities. Apart from the annual
review, the internal control team performs regular reviews
for all material control areas and focus. The process involves
the identification of risks associated with each of the
financial, operational and compliance controls, the
assessment of risk level, the implementation of control
procedures to monitor or mitigate the risks and the report
of issues to the Board on an ongoing basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Code provision C.2.1 sets out that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Cheng Hop Fai assumed the role of both the
chairman and the managing Director (equivalent to the
role of a chief executive) of the Company up to the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 16 August 2024. The Board considered
that such arrangement would not result in undue
concentration of power and was, at that stage, conducive
to the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group's strategies, thus allowing the Group to develop its
business more effectively. Following Mr. Cheng Hop Fai's
retirement as the chairman of the Board and Ms. Cheng
Pak Man, Anita’s succession as the chairperson of the
Board and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily’s succession as the
managing Director on 16 August 2024, the Company has
complied with code provision C.2.1.
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Code provision C.1.4 stipulates that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company had received from each of
the Directors a record of training they received during
the year ended 31 March 2025. A summary of such
training is listed as follows:

EIER

Type of
= Name of Director training
WITES Executive Director
B5 98 (7R2024F8A16HEF) CHENG Hop Fai (retired on 16 August 2024) A, B
#0 5 BA CHENG Pak Ming, Judy A, B
B H 8 CHENG Pak Man, Anita A, B
EEE CHENG Pak Lai, Lily A, B
BN IFITES Independent Non-Executive Director
EE (7R2024F8RA16HEF) LAW Toe Ming (retired on 16 August 2024) A, B
HER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew A, B
RAE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny A, B
B ZR (7220246 H19B EZ(T) LAW Kwok Tai (appointed on 19 June 2024) A, B

A HEBEIRER SN g% TED
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B: HMEBWLE ARAEBREZBRIENT
MR AR
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A:  Attending training courses and/or seminars, conferences,
workshops or forums

B:  Reading journals and updates relevant to the Company’s
business or directors’ duties and responsibilities

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

19



20

ML/\—/-‘-\\ =
EERME

Corporate Governance Report

FWEES

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

AN T H2005FE7A14B B2 KT HFE
B FHEEeNETEREAMAEE
BARTEERBULIATEERARE
BABMFHEEEMESSIRMEES -
P& B 25201243 8238 R 4% Hy B 42 &
B H X TR AR SFRME X — 2 &L
Z2025F3A3IRLEFEAN - FNEES
H-RBIIIERNTESHAEN  BIEEE
REERER HAERTERERRELAE
BB - R2024F6H19H - BEBEH T A
FIFETEERKE  BURITEER
BREEHZERFMNEZEESKNE MR
EEFAWATATHEZESERE - RE
Z2025F3A3IRLEFEAN - HNEZES
MEEKEERIT—REH ATUHRE
EMFNEE  E2ERENESHEBE
AEBMNESESHEUALENNOTEHBR

The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 14 July 2005. The principal function of the
remuneration committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, INEDs and senior management. The
terms of reference of the remuneration committee
adopted on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2025, the remuneration committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Toe Ming as chairman,
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong
Johnny as members. On 19 June 2024, Mr. Law Toe
Ming ceased to act as a member and the chairman and
Mr. Law Kwok Tai, an INED, was appointed as a member
of the remuneration committee; and Mr. Yuen Shiu
Cheong, Johnny was redesignated as the chairman of
the remuneration committee. During the year ended 31

B oRMEEeRMEZE SFTMEEEK March 2025, the remuneration committee held one
EMNEALRFEBERAT : meeting to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
with reference to the level of responsibilities of the
individual Director, the scope of operation of the Group
as well as the prevailing market conditions. Individual
attendance of each remuneration committee member is
as follows:
FMEEERENA Name of R
remuneration committee member Attendance
EEHH (F/E) LAW Toe Ming (Chairman) 1/1
(FA2024F6 A198 = 1) (ceased on 19 June 2024)
RBE (FE) YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny (Chairman) 1/1
(7A2024F6 A19HEZ(T) (appointed on 19 June 2024)
HEE HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 11
#EB R (FR2024F6 198 EZF) LAW Kwok Tai (appointed on 19 June 2024) N/A

B E20253A31H IEEED A
SREREE (BEEE)NFHEHL
RA B ERARMES -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The remuneration paid/payable to senior management
(comprising Directors) for the year ended 31 March
2025 is set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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The Company established a nomination committee on
23 March 2012. The principal function of the
nomination committee is to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board at least annually
with reference to the business needs and development
of the Company and make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are
consistent with the code provisions set out in the Code.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the nomination
committee comprised the chairman and an executive
Director, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, who acts as the chairman
of the nomination committee and the two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Law Toe Ming and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen,
Andrew as members. On 19 June 2024, Mr. Law Toe
Ming ceased to act and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny
was appointed as a member of the nomination
committee. The conclusion of the AGM on 16 August
2024, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai retired from his position and
Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita was appointed as a
chairperson of the nomination committee. During the
year ended 31 March 2025, the nomination committee
held one meeting to review the composition and
diversity of the Board as well as to assess the
independence of the INED who offered himself for
re-election at the annual general meeting. Since the
Board is composed of members having a mix of core
competencies in areas of accounting and finance,
business management, industry knowledge and marketing
strategies, the nomination committee considered the
Board possessed a diversity of perspectives which is up
to the standard of the Code and was appropriate to the
Group’s requirements. Individual attendance of each of
the nomination committee members is as follows:

REZEEHREHE Name of 4 =
nomination committee member Attendance
BEE(EE) CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman) 11
(FA2024F8A16HIR ) (retired on 16 August 2024)
AT (EE) CHENG Pak Man, Anita (Chairperson) N/A
(2024816 B EZ ) (appointed on 16 August 2024)
& B (R2024F6 A19R % 1F) LAW Toe Ming (ceased on 19 June 2024) 1/1
HEER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 11
RAZE (R2024F6 A198 EE ) YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny N/A

2024/25 Annual Report F3R

(appointed on 19 June 2024)
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Board Diversity

The nomination committee has adopted a policy
concerning the diversity of Board members (the
“Policy”). Pursuant to the Policy, in reviewing the
Board’s diversity, the Board will consider including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. New Directors, being
individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to
make a positive contribution to the performance of the
Board and having due regards to the criteria stated in
the Policy, will be identified and submitted to the Board
or shareholders for approval either to fill vacancies on
the Board or to be appointed as additional directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists
of three male Directors and three female Directors.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that gender diversity
of the Board has been achieved. The Board will continue
to pay due regard to gender parity in the succession
planning process to ensure that a diverse pipeline of
potential successors to the Board is available.

The Board also recognises the importance of achieving
diversity at the workforce level. As at 31 March 2025,
the workforce of the Group (including senior
management) consists of 49% male to 51% female.
Accordingly, the Board considers that the gender
diversity of the workforce has been achieved.

2024/25 Annual Report 3k
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The Company has established an audit committee since
1999. The primary functions of the audit committee
include:

(@) To make recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of auditor and to
consider the terms of such appointments;

(b) To review and monitor the auditor’s independence;
to develop and implement policies on the
engagement of auditor for non-audit services;

(c) To monitor the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report;
to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to ensure that the
information presents a true and fair assessment of
the Group’s financial position;

(d) To review the Group’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; to ensure
management has fulfilled its duty to have effective
systems and to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

() To consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings; and

(f) To review the auditor's management letter and any
guestions raised by the auditor to management, and
management’s response.

The terms of reference of the audit committee adopted
on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2025, the audit committee comprised three
INEDs namely, Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew as chairman,
Mr. Law Toe Ming and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny
as members. On 19 June 2024, Mr. Law Toe Ming
ceased to act and Mr. Law Kwok Tai was appointed as a
member of the audit committee.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, the audit
committee held two meetings and reviewed with senior
management and the auditor their respective audit
findings, the interim and annual financial statements

REEERBEEFTEHMN2024/25FFH and the accounting principles and practices adopted by
HARENRFR BERZLESESKEM/MA R the Group. The audit committee recommended the
FBIERAT Board to adopt the interim and annual reports for
2024/25. Individual attendance of each member of the
audit committee is as follows:
ERZEEEREHA Name of HE=
audit committee member Attendance
HER(FE) HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew (Chairman) 2/2
7B (FR2024F6 A198=1E) LAW Toe Ming (ceased on 19 June 2024) 1/2
RBE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 2/2
EEZE (FR2024F6 A19B EZ L) LAW Kwok Tai (appointed on 19 June 2024) 172
A EE A AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

HZE2025F3A31HLFE AR AZE
MAGERER (BB 2AMEHAMEAR
N REMARMAEERENETRIE
B RBOESM LT

The remuneration payable in respect of the year ended
31 March 2025 for audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, PKF
Hong Kong Limited and other firms, is as follows:

AT TTEt

Amount in HKD'000

ERTE Audit Fees 430
IEEFTE Non-Audit Fees 18
448

BEED g RS B AT E R A R & R R
FIREAZESAE o
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The statement made by the auditor in respect of their
reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 48 to 54 of
this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and its disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance practices and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
including compliance with the Code for the year ended
31 March 2025.

COMPANY SECRETARY

EAPLZLT RAFITES © 520065
2AI7THBEERARWE BT RE=
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Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, an executive Director, has
been the Company Secretary since 17 February 2006.
Ms. Cheng complied with the qualification and training
requirements under the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2025.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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The Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the shareholders
of the Company are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to clear and comprehensive information
about the Company. The Company has established
several channels to communicate with the shareholders,
namely (i) publication of annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars; (ii) posting of all corporate
communications and corporate information on the
Company’s website at www.g-vision.com.hk and the
Stock Exchange's website at www.hkexnews.hk; and (iii)
holding of annual general meetings and other general
meetings which provide a forum for the shareholders to
make comments and exchange views with the Directors
and senior management.

Shareholders are also encouraged to maintain direct
communication with the Company. Shareholders who
have any questions for the Board may write directly to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong
principal place of business, Unit 108, 1st Floor, East Ocean
Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, or send emails to info@g-vision.com.hk. The
Company Secretary will direct the questions to the
Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the
shareholders can be addressed directly to the Company’s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong
Kong.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if
necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of
Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer shareholders’
questions.

Procedures for shareholders to convene and put
forward proposals at shareholders meeting

If the shareholders of the Company wish to call a special
general meeting, it must be convened according to the
Company’s bye-laws. In summary:

(@) Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company can, in writing to
the Board or the Company Secretary, request a
special general meeting to be called by the Board to
transact any business specified in such request.

(b) The signed written request, which should specify
the purpose of the meeting, should be delivered to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The meeting will be held within two months
after receipt of the request. If the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting within
twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication
arrangement and considers that the Company’s
communication with shareholders is effective during the
year under review.
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Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, aged 53, was appointed
as an executive Director on 30 September 2004.
Ms. Cheng was appointed as chairperson of the
Company and the nomination committee of the
Company with effect from 16 August 2024. Ms. Cheng
is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a sister of
Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily.
She holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the
University of New South Wales, Sydney and a Master of
Applied Finance degree from Macquarie University,
Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Cheng had worked in the investment banking and
accounting fields in Hong Kong for over 5 years. She is
responsible for the business development, marketing
and strategic planning functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, aged 52, was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 April 2011. Ms. Cheng was
appointed as managing Director of the Company with
effect from 16 August 2024. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of
Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita. She joined the
Group in 2006. Ms. Cheng is responsible for the general
management, financial and strategic planning functions
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng had
extensive finance and accounting experiences in
multinational audit firm, investment bank and a
renowned chemical company. She holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney and is a Certified Practising Accountant
of CPA Australia.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, aged 54, was appointed
as an executive Director on 25 September 1992. She
was also appointed as the Company Secretary on 17
February 2006. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics from the University of Sydney and a Master
of Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant
of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
responsible for the internal control and company
secretarial functions of the Group.
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Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew, aged 56, was appointed
as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee on 18 June 2019. He was appointed as
the chairman of the audit committee on 23 June 2021.
Mr. Hung is currently the director of Norton Rowland
CPA Limited. He received his professional training in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu during the period from 1991
to 1993 and had worked in UBS Investment Bank as
business unit controller for seven years. Mr. Hung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master’s
Degree in Applied Finance from University of Western
Sydney. He is a practising Certified Public Accountant, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Hung was an
independent non-executive director of AKM Industrial
Company Limited (stock code: 1639, the shares of which
were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 28 July 2022) from 10
October 2011 to 28 July 2022, and FDG Kinetic Limited
(stock code: 378, the shares of which were delisted from
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with effect from
20 February 2023) from 1 July 2008 to 20 February
2023.

Mr. YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny, aged 52, was
appointed as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee and audit committee on 23
June 2021. He was redesignated as chairman of the
remuneration committee and appointed as member of
the nomination committee of the Company with effect
from 19 June 2024. Mr. Yuen began his career in KPMG
and has over 25 years of experiences in financial
management, accounting, auditing and administration.
He held various senior positions in other listed
companies in Hong Kong before joining IRC Limited
(stock code: 1029) which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yuen is currently the finance
director, the company secretary and authorised
representative of IRC Limited. Mr. Yuen did not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the last three
years. Mr. Yuen holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Manchester Business School of
University of Manchester and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

29



30

EEZNEREEE

Directors and Senior Management

BYFHTES (8)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

EER%LE 535 P2024F6H19H &
ZEARBUFPTEZTRARBEFMNE
BEEREREZEGKE - BEERDERM
B HRERTRECBEHRBE20FLH -
BEERBRAERLEMARBLESIE
ER AR (MDA 2536) A& fEB
RBERNFIWE BEERNBE=ZFNA
WHEETEM FHRARNETMEEHBE -

7 o AETR2018%9F £2023F5H HifE &
FERETFEMNERABHNRITES -
I H2015F9 A 20188 A B £ T In
TEE(FE) BRAFES - R200658
AZE2015F8 A8 BAERZEZRER
BR(GER)BERARETEE - BELER
200542 A £2006F8 A Hi M #£ T iR
BIMAERATNBIBEIEE - BEER
200043 A £2005F2 A HAf £ = =5 8 7%
BERARARMTE  BHREASREE -
1996F 12 A 22000528 B R EHERS
BETMEBAMER  cEBUABEKL
o BIELERIIFINAZENETBETL
By FaEEagEmastan . f
R1996F 12 A B BRMER AE KT K
BTHEERELTEMN -

BEFTEBBRMNEEBNESTMER
W 2001 F9 A ERA AIFFF & D AT ED
B -BEENABBEEAFNREEGE

REE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Mr. Law Kwok Tai, aged 53, was appointed as an INED
and a member of the Company’s remuneration
committee and audit committee on 19 June 2024.
Mr. Law has over 20 years of experience in the
corporate finance, investment banking and financial
industry. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of Palasino Holdings Limited (stock code:
2536) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Law did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the last three years.

Mr. Law was an executive director at Morgan Stanley
Asia Limited from September 2018 to May 2023 and a
director at Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited from
September 2015 to August 2018. From August 2006 to
August 2015, He worked at BNP Paribas Capital (Asia
Pacific) Limited with his last position as a director. He
was an assistant vice president at BOCI Asia Limited
from February 2005 to August 2006. From March 2000
to February 2005, He was at Anglo Chinese Corporate
Finance, Limited, where his last position was senior
manager. From December 1996 to February 2000, He
was at KPMG, where his last position was assistant
manager. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
with an honorary Bachelor of Science in Nursing in
November 1994 and obtained his Master of Business
Administration from Monash in Melbourne, Australia in
December 1996.

Mr. Law is qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in
Australia and in Hong Kong and was certified as a
Chartered Financial Analyst in September 2001. He is
also a fellow of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute.
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The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

ARFB—RREERAT - HX2H B
RAETBREHPILE BN B

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the operation of
restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in Chiu Chow
Cuisine.

RESULTS
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ABENESSESENAABm LEME
MW E K o

EEZCCFATEZREH =2025F3A
MBI FERRIAR B (20245 « £) -

e o)

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2025 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 55 to
56 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025
(2024: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
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A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year as required by schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and a discussion of the
Group's likely future development can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Those discussions form part of this report of
the Directors. The environmental, social and governance
report of the Company which is available on the
Company’s website at www.g-vision.com.hk and the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk shall
also form part of the business review.
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BFRBEERER

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
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During the year under review, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS
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The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business
goals. During the year under review, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and
its employees, customers or suppliers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
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For the Group's restaurant operations, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the largest supplier and five
largest suppliers of the Group were 23% and 65%,
respectively, of the Group’s purchases for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group was less than 30% of the
Group's revenue for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates
nor any shareholder, (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital), has an interest in any of the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE
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The Company is committed to the sustainable
development of the environment and the society. The
Group has endeavoured to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental practices to ensure the
business meet the required standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection. Further details of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance
report of the Company for the year under review to be
published together with this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Details of the movement of property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
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During the year under review, there was no charitable
donation made by the Group (2024: N/A).

Bg 72 SHARE CAPITAL

NN N S S N Sl B Bl Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital

5526 ° are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

& RESERVES
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Details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March
2025 are set out in note 27-28 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of
changes of equity.

As at 31 March 2025, there were no distributable
reserves of the Company.

DIRECTORS

RAFERBEAGERHNESRR

BITES:
WEK(LE)
BAE(EFHLE)
LSS

BYFHTES:
=+

RIBARRNBRRAMRES7(1)E - BHAK
i&//\miﬁ‘ﬁiﬂﬂ’\ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ% THIRRIBF
Reg ((RRBFEXE])) LHERE AN
BEBBEEE -
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

CHENG Pak Man, Anita (Chairperson)
CHENG Pak Lai, Lily (Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

Independent non-executive Directors:

HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew
YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny
LAW Kwok Tai

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Mr. Hung Chi
Yuen will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”") and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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55 (&)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

RREZECNEFHEEAQRNEL
B AR ARIEAKEMHE OX
EFHMERSN) - BRITEEHE —FRK LD
RIGEH -

ESENRO - HERORESHHER

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

R2025F3A31H  EERTHRAH EE
B2 ATEAR R A A AR EB AR
HERGODKEHFFR O ERGQ)BBRIEBE(ES
NEAEED) ([EH RHEEO]) EXVED
FIRSIEBAMANT NEEZ AT ¢ sk(b)BIR
BA(BEHF L EE GG E3521KEZIEFTIR
MHEEMAERE  s()BRE T REE
M3 &% C3FT #1912 £ <7 Rl 8 AN AR R B K B
RETHFBWT

As at 31 March 2025, the interests of the Directors and
the chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

¥e Long positions

(1) MARAFREENA TE B (1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of

R the Company:
RN
ERTRA
MBAB D
BFEERT Approximate
EEBERHAE percentage of
B RERME Number of issued the issued
EEpE Capacity and ordinary share capital
Name of Director nature of interest shares held  of the Company

BAHM
Cheng Pak Man, Anita

FHE
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily

e 8
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy

EREREA (Mita)

Beneficiary of trusts (note a)

EEXEA (Kita)

Beneficiary of trusts (note a)

EREXEA (K ita)

Beneficiary of trusts (note a)

34 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

1,450,037,841

1,450,037,841

1,450,037,841

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

4 & (%)

(1) RARESREE1E T & &K
i ()
fifit

(a) Golden Toy K Kong Faim Bl#HE AR
a]172,869,780M% (5¢8.88% 1 &) M
1,277,168,06 1% (3165.62 %1 7 ) £ A%
3 » Golden ToyX Kong Fai @ EZE
HEXEERE ZMERFETHDE
ZRAAABABRAENREKRE 8
EHAELEE: BHALT BEHEK
TREAELZ T -

(2) BRENIER :

AN A A201055 108 5 49 & A%
REETE ([2010F 51 81)) - Zet &R
202045480 2 Hi - B #5 10202048
AZERTHBRERAF A BAMK
RRFBER AR BIEMN T HAOERE
&I (12020 51281 » #E[R2010F 5+
ElRTEIETE)) o BRIERIZE2020F &F
EIR R AR AT AR 1E - B RI2020F 51 &
AMEAE203048A3H - ABTEIR
HBEERERE T BHRERMEE29 -
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Long positions (Continued)

(1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company: (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Golden Toy and Kong Fai held 172,869,780 shares (or
8.88% interest) and 1,277,168,061 shares (or 65.62%
interest) of the Company, respectively. Golden Toy and
Kong Fai are wholly-owned by two discretionary trusts
of which family members of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai,
including Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak

Lai, Lily are discretionary objects.

(2) Long positions in share options:

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme"”) which expired
on 8 May 2020. By shareholders’ resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 3 August
2020, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2020 Scheme”, and, together with
the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”). Unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the rules of
the 2020 Scheme, the 2020 Scheme shall be valid
and effective until 3 August 2030. Particulars of the
Schemes are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

(8) UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)
#e (&) Long positions (Continued)

(2)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

EhEnge : (&)

H Z2025F3A318 L FE R #2010

(2) Long positions in share options: (Continued)

Details of movements in the share options granted

FHERTEENEREEZEYFB W to the Directors under the 2010 Scheme for the
T year ended 31 March 2025 are set out below:
BREHE
Number of share options
#20245 R2025%
5R 4R18 RER 3A31H
BRESEA REEH s TEE MATHE  (R¥)/BH i RATEE
(Lapsed)/
Exercise  Outstanding granted  Outstanding
Name of price as at during as at
option holders Date of grant  Exercisable period® per share 1.4.2024 the year 31.3.2025
LIS 2017108238 2017510238 %
202510/ 228
Cheng Hop Fai 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
g5 2017%10A238  2017F10A238%
20256104228
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
LSk 2017%10A238 201781072382
2025F10A 228
Cheng Pak Man, Anita 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
g5 20175108238 2017F10A238%
2025104220
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
BEH 20175108238 2017410A23A%
20254104220
Law Toe Ming 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 2,000,000 (2,000,000) -
26,000,000 (2,000,000) 24,000,000
Hiat - Note:
(a) M20175F10A2ER THEREES B (@) The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the

AEt AR BE A% A2,906,0007 7T °
TEAR A H30% R IFF H (2017410
H230) BIEFERE - BB E L H30%
M2018F10H23E B8 » £ #40%%
2019F10A23B B - BEE R FHA

RAT RGO TERNTTETT ©

share options on 23 October 2017 was HK$2,906,000.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
immediately on the date of grant, 23 October 2017.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
on 23 October 2018 and the remaining 40% were
vested on 23 October 2019. The closing price of the
Company'’s share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.177.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

WRe(E)

(2) BRENTE : (B)
Br | SCRT# 88 & SN - 7A2025F3 A31
B RIBE(ES L EIEF) EXVELSE
IR8DE ARREBRFEITHA
EYABHEAB AR AR ETMBE
EEMRG BERMDRESEST
EMERSAR  MZxEEEA
BRARE(ESR KBEKH) EXV
BT, EBBMAMA R E) R FT
H(b)ERBE(ES KIE 1|7R15U>>%35z
1 Z TN ERLM : S()BRIBIZE
BB AAN D B MBS AT o

BEROIEZNZH

Long positions (Continued)

(2) Long positions in share options: (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none
of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company was, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, taken to be interested or deemed to
have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations which (a)
would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or (b) which were required to
be entered into the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) which
were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

B bt 3¢ BB e BB AR S - K2 B] - BAEAA
ME AR SIER AR KEZERRBNE
B AR - RAFEARGRE L EBEMN
ZHE AEERREBBRBARRRE
fa] B Ath 2 A B B2 B0 A7 3 (B 275 1 JEE ER A 25
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Other than the options disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or holding company, or any subsidiary of its holding
company, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

REdimE TESRENERI 102025
F3A318 - ARRRIE(ES LS GG
EB6HREBEEFNEIEZRREZMETR - T3
ATEBAARRZREBE(ER KRG K
1) EXVEF 52 235 B A A A w4 R H R
ARARDHETRATNB@REE AR

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors, as at 31 March 2025, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO indicated that the
following persons had notified the Company of interests
or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

¥e Long positions
RAREREEBEONATHE B
£ SREEME
Capacity and
Name nature of interest
Z &8 EnEAA

Cheng Hop Fai Beneficial owner

EREXEA

Beneficial of trusts

Golden Toy EmEA A
Golden Toy Beneficial owner
Kong Fai EmfEA A
Kong Fai Beneficial owner

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited

EEXTA
Trustee of trusts

REHhENER
Interest of controlled corporation

Alpadis Group Holding AG
Alpadis Group Holding AG

REHtROES
Interest of controlled corporation

Alain Esseiva
Alain Esseiva

Teo Wei Lee B =
Teo Wei Lee Interest of Spouse

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

FriER
2 %17
EBEREE

Number

of issued
ordinary
shares held

6,900,000

1,450,037,841@

172,869,780®

1,277,168,061®

1,450,037,841®

1,450,037,841©

1,450,037,841@

1,450,037,841@

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company:

EE AT
EBITRAEAN
BB
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company

0.35%

74.50%

8.88%

65.62%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%
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FERR (&) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
" (&) Long positions (Continued)
et - Notes:

(@) Golden ToyKKong Fai® Bl # & & RQ 7
2172,869,7800% f% 19 (3(8.88% #E ) &
1,277,168,061 A% A% 17 (2k65.62% 2= ) °
Golden ToyM&Kong Fai JyEMBE2EELE
BHR ZMEEAZIZABBAEBEL
ZRERE  BEBEE  BHALLT B
LT REABLL -

(b) RIBEBHRAEED  EAmEREETE
fi (# B Golden Toy&Kong Fai#)100%7# 25 )
# 5L A + Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited# 18 &
M Golden ToyKKong Faiff& £ EHEE N
F8R11,450,037,84 1R R i B i zs o

() Alpadis Group Holding AG (87 & AAlpadis
Group Holding SA) FiEM AR EZ R KA
HNFE AR TR E 5 KBRS 16 01 A 42 7R Alpadis
Trust (HK) Limited#§ %5 8 21 f #1810
1,450,037, 841 e fx th P E B #E 25 ©

(d) Alain Esseivals #& # B A £ Z R F @145
i REE H KB E GO A & R Alpadis
Group Holding AGH & # 1 2 M 4 1R AR
1,450,037 841 IRARH P A % ©

(e) Teo Wei Lee FREMMAEBREBAIEL
1% $21,450,037,84 1/ A% 15 /R ¥ B KO 1 25 T0
5 E B R Alain EsseivafREzs o

B EXFTIEEEI EEIWAAENR2025
FIANBEAMEMALTERRANRK
DRBERDFHEETWERIORE M
ZERTIAR BRB(GESXBEEN)
F336ERARRBBEFHEM -

BMRABUFAITES

(a) Golden Toy and Kong Fai held 172,869,780 shares (or 8.88%
interest) and 1,277,168,061 shares (or 65.62% interest) of
the Company, respectively. Golden Toy and Kong Fai are
wholly-owned by two discretionary trusts of which family
members of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, including Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita
and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily are discretionary objects.

(b)  Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited is deemed under the SFO to have
an interest in the same 1,450,037,841 shares, in aggregate,
beneficially owned by Golden Toy and Kong Fai by virtue of it
being the trustee of two discretionary trusts which own
100% of the shares of Golden Toy and Kong Fai.

(c) The corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by Alpadis
Group Holding AG (formerly known as Alpadis Group Holding
SA) indicated that it is deemed to be interested in the
1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by virtue of its interest
held in Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited.

(d) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Alain
Esseiva indicated that he is deemed to be interested in the
1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by virtue of his interests
held in Alpadis Group Holding AG.

(e) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Teo Wei
Lee indicated that her deemed interest in the 1,450,037,841
shares represents the interest of her spouse Alain Esseiva.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 March 2025, had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ARAE B EBUIFFATESRIELD
MAIEIIBRBELNFREBLIEERE
ARBRBABELIFATESH /B -
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The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all of the INEDs are independent.
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EERBRFEBPHES

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

REBEFERN MEEEHIEEENER

BMBA(EER LWRA) ERRAEERE
ﬂ‘*ﬁﬁzifﬁfﬁa&&Tﬁ‘é%ﬁ%E’JiﬁﬂﬂP%
BiE{sEs

EERANRBEERZTHER

BX

During the year under review, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interests in a business that competed or
was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) AEBBE2002F5860 (E[AERNERE
BRAR([EA))HEBETYWEER
EEBELECH -

R2023F 47281 - ALK B H LR E
ZMHAD - BE—F - HEIH202355
B1HE E2024%4A308 1+t A #A
360,000 C (TRIE=ZM EBEE
kAR E)  HEES A1,080,000%
JT ° Hfﬂﬁaumﬁﬁxﬁﬁm’”ﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ
cBBTHNFHBIHRAR

2023%4)%285%’%#} N o

R2024F4 8308 @ A% B HIE R E
HHA - BE—F HHEH20245F5
A1H#E202544A8308 1+ A #
360,000 L (T REEZMW - ERE
kLARE) MEXSH1,080 oooﬁé
Lo AEAFINEF2BMEBEHESM
BT BHTHENFBINARAR
2024FAR30B B HMAE o

ERRE B AR FARDRNES
#%4,320,000/% 7T °

Y& F) JhGolden ToyM 2 &K B A R
WERRABMITEETDSBELE - &
BRZL R+t REAERL LT
BRAEE 77 - WARIR AR B AR R AR
NEIRIREEANTL o
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(a)

The Group has leased from Homley Development
Limited (“Homley"”) certain properties for the
Group’s restaurant operations since 6 May 2002.

On 28 April 2023, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a further period of one
year commencing 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024 at a
monthly rental of HK$360,000 (exclusive of rates,
management and air-conditioning fees) and a rental
deposit of HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental was
negotiated with Homley with reference to the
market rents. Details of the arrangement are set out
in the announcement dated 28 April 2023 issued by
the Company.

On 30 April 2024, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a further period of one
year commencing 1 May 2024 to 30 April 2025 at a
monthly rental of HK$360,000 (exclusive of rates,
management and air-conditioning fees) and a rental
deposit of HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental was
negotiated with Homley with reference to the
market rents. Details of the arrangement are set out
in the announcement dated 30 April 2024 issued by
the Company.

Rentals charged by Homley during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$4,320,000.

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy
and therefore is an associate of the executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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BEENREARBEERGHNER (F) DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) AEEB2005F1A3THERZWE (b) The Group has leased from Hover City Industrial

EERAR (T D ER—EFEEXR
BEEM -

R2024F1831H - A& B H W E
W4 AH—F BH2024%2A1H
#ZE=2025%1A318 1k A 75,000
BT (TREEZMR EEBRAAE)
&%ﬁg¢ﬁ @1 50,000/% JC ° ﬂ fﬂ EE EIT
HMEFL2BHISHEEMET -

MR2025F1 8218 » KEEE 5 5 &
#MHLO - BH—F - B2025%F2AH1H
#2ZE20265%F1A318 1k - A 75,000
BT(TEEZM EBEBRARE)
N F & 12 £150,0005 7T - B M ES
HeERF2BMSHEEMET -

SERE R AORFEAREBRNES
/%900,0008 7T °

S, JhGolden ToyH) 2 &M B A )
WAERNRABNITESDABEELLE - &
HREZLT gzt hkEaRELZ L
R RAEL 5 - I*ETFLW%EE‘J%E%EEZS
NG PEd
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Limited (“Hover City”) a unit of a residential
building since 31 January 2005.

On 31 January 2024, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2024 to
31 January 2025 at a monthly rental of HK$75,000
(exclusive of rates, management and air-conditioning
fees) and a rental deposit of HK$150,000. The
monthly rental was determined by both parties with
reference to market rents.

On 21 January 2025, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2025 to
31 January 2026 at a monthly rental of HK$75,000
(exclusive of rates, management and air-conditioning
fees) and a rental deposit of HK$150,000. The
monthly rental was determined by both parties with
reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Hover City during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$900,000.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is
regarded as a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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BEENRENRBERGHNER (F) DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

REBBH2012F1 308 £ M &K
BEERAR (&) BEA—EHAE -

R2024F1A31H  REBEEREE
4 AH—F BH2024%2A1H
#Z20259F1A318 1k AF100,000
BIL(TREEZMW EEEBRLAE)
N E R 4£241,0008 0 - B A E]
WEHR2BEMBHSMETE -

MR2025F1 8218 KEBHFEE
#HLO - BH—F - B2025%2A1H
#£ Z2026%1A318 1k A 790,000
BT (TEEZMW EEBRRAE)
N E % $£241,0008 7L - A A
HNEFZ2BMIZHEESMET °

FERE LREAONFARBRONES
431,180,000 7T ©

FAEDEHHEEMBRR - =W
X BGolden ToyW 2 &M B A A - &
RARNFTNTESZHESIELRE BB
At HARZIREABELZLN
AT WIRE EMRAER AR
AlRREATL -

RER AEBEEBERXASERAA
(=) ETRS - AFERA B
4 8% %8 /A375,00058 7T (20244 -
492,000 JT) ° F2025F3H318 -
JIE U 16 25 H) FUIE A20,00008 7T (2024
£F 40,000 B TT) ©

BEERWHEZEMNBRR - KM
AllZ2 Golden ToyME#EZEWB AR °

(o)

The Group has leased from Sky Global Investments
Limited (“Sky Global”) an office since 30 January
2012.

On 31 January 2024, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2024 to
31 January 2025 at a monthly rental of HK$100,000
(exclusive of rates, management and air-conditioning
fees) and a rental deposit of HK$241,000. The
monthly rental was determined by both parties with
reference to market rents.

On 21 January 2025, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2025 to
31 January 2026 at a monthly rental of HK$90,000
(exclusive of rates, management and air-conditioning
fees) and a rental deposit of HK$241,000. The
monthly rental was determined by both parties with
reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Sky Global during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$1,180,000.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover
City which in turn is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Golden Toy and therefore is an
associate of the executive Directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng
Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is regarded as a
connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

During the year, the Group entered into transactions
with Hung Yick Metal Company Limited (“Hung
Yick”). Sales to Hung Yick during the year
amounted to HK$375,000 (2024: HK$492,000). At
31 March 2025, receivable from Hung Yick was
HK$20,000 (2024: HK$40,000).

Hung Yick is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover
City which in turn is a direct wholly-owned

subsidiary of Golden Toy.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(€ WEMN EE(ABATEERAR)
BF BT

(e) The remuneration of directors, which are key
management personnel during the year was as

follows:
20254 20244
2025 2024
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B K E 42 A Salaries and other benefits 2,020 2,620
RIKEFE A Retirement benefits cost 54 54
2,074 2,674

ARAZEMZERETSGAMAGH
Y CE B RIS B RI) F30005 (K
A TE LB S E R E R B AN 2 E
BRIT2REBHPBETAOREREE
T AR R B 4 4 B i X 5 O A BB B 1
ERAEENFEHRER S - RHECDR
& BT AR RS 14A 56163 B ERE B R K
o MEERANEBE () E(HEMH
BORERERXINHEERLER

BUFRTERCEN LRQ@QEONRFE
ERXSRZBMRE  UERZERS
EHARRERELEXBBREFR - Z—R
ARG RRIERE % FRX S8 0 IE RN
RN ZERGRATFRE  XTEARRF
PRRE BN AR o
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in (a) to
(c) above in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in (a) to (c¢) above and the report of the
auditor and have confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
course of its business, on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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Save as disclosed in (a) to (c) above, none of the related
party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company
which is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
The Company confirmed that it was in compliance with
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or holding company, or
any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in
which a Director or an entity connected with him/her
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

REEFER - W& AR E 2 AW
EABODEBNEERTHAILKEFESR
# e

BE HEIFEERD

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

REEFERA - AREHEAEAHE QA
WHEBEE  DERBLOARAAMRD

B R

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review.

REMUNERATION POLICY
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The remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

Employees of the Group are compensated based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.
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REMUNERATION POLICY (Continued)
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The 2020 Scheme was adopted by the Company on 3
August 2020. The 2020 Scheme provides long-term
incentives to Directors and eligible employees and also
serves as a retention tool for high performing staff.
Details of the 2020 Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY
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The Board has absolute discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company
in accordance to the memorandum of association and
bye-laws of the Company and subject to all applicable
laws and regulations. The Company has no fixed
dividend pay-out ratio. In recommending or declaring
dividends, the Board will take into consideration the
following factors, including, but not limited to:

(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) the level of retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(c) the Group's debt-to-equity ratio; return on equity
and other relevant financial indicators;

(d) the restrictions and financial covenants on payments
of dividends imposed by the Group’s creditors;

(e) the Group's liquidity conditions, cashflow forecasts
and business development plan;

(f) the Group’'s working capital and other capital
expenditure requirements;

(g) the macroeconomic factors and other changes in
business, financial or economic conditions; and

(h) any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate
from time to time.
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BEERBEE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

BEEEFMAENARHEN  EFER
KABRE ZE2025F3A831HIEFEME
EAREBHRHURFIREANAZFERE -

BRI EIR

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirm that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 March 2025
and up to the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

BIEARMAIE166(1)E  EFEME
HEH#EAAN - BBATALEE AR
PEATIERSATRGARER T
B MEEANEXNMBFRL KA B
A-BX BEMRAX  AIERAQANE
EMMBERREGEEMRE  UREXE
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Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons.

During the year under review, the Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover

potential legal actions against its Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

KA HABREE - HFBIEHRERE
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The Company has share option scheme, the details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as the aforesaid, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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ZEEm AUDITOR

RERER (BB GFMEBMEAERA The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
AIE A EBE E2025F3A31H IEF the year ended 31 March 2025 have been audited by
ESABEHRERNBALIE X208 RN PKF Hong Kong Limited. A resolution will be submitted
EEMNRRBAFRAS LRE-BARE at the AGM to re-appoint PKF Hong Kong Limited as the
BRERXERER (BB QHMEBAE auditor of the Company.

BR A F1 A AR R A% BRAD -

EEEgRE On behalf of the Board

Bl H 8 CHENG PAK MAN, ANITA
TE CHAIRPERSON

A Hong Kong

2025F6 H19H 19 June 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

KNIz EED ([A7T]) E B EH N ESSEE
123ERBIBBREBRER 2T ((EA2F])
REWBAR ([EEE]) WiRE %R
X BB BEN2025F3/831H 4R E Bt
BRARK HEZALFENEAERK
HhzmlaX SKEAEZEHREEE
REMER URGEEVBHEBREME &
FERSTHREKRER -

RTRE  ZERAUBRRERERS
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B BHREENSFTEREEmNA TR
T HEEMN2025F3831HH4RA B
BRRAAREBEZB LFENGETE
RERGEABRERE YEERBREAE(RD
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 55 to 123, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2025, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FARBFFHEIRENTHERHE - R
REAHHESEEMBRRNBEARR/ER
MEIR ELERAREATEITERRS
MBI MEABRREETREE  £A1T14
CHELFERHABEBFNER - ATHR
BB ERT FIRM T
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matter we identified is:

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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B ESTSE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HRETER
Key Audit Matter

WA &R

Revenue recognition

B2HRAMBRERMIBMERE K
M EEA()

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements and note 4(j) of
material accounting policies.

ERNEREBIFHE  NTREWARER
REAREBAFIE -

We identified recognition of revenue
from restaurant operations as a key audit
matter due to the volume of transactions
of restaurant operations.

BUE2025F3A31B IEFE - BB EKIK
A#J4350,230,00078 7T ° A #875 WALAZR
THEARIMNEER -

For the year ended 31 March 2025, revenue
from restaurant operations amounted
to approximately HK$50,230,000. Vast
majority of revenue was settled in cash or
by credit card.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

FITMAHERESETRETEN
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RITBEEBHOWAETHREF B
Our procedures in relation to revenue from restaurant
operations included:

TRBARBRIE - WRIHAER AR B RIZET
Obtaining an understanding of the revenue business
processes and testing key controls over revenue
recognition;

WA MEURANETHSAS  EFRNHE
WE - HEZEEMBITRURE

Performing tests of details, on a sample basis, on
recorded revenue by vouching to sales summary,
sales invoices and bank receipts;

AHERBANER - K

Testing revenue cut-off at year-end; and

ETOTERRF - LEFBRANERMIZERA -
Performing analytical procedures to identify any
unusual patterns of revenue.
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OTHER INFORMATION
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review
of the audit work performed for the purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Hui Lai King (Practising
Certificate Number: P03499).

PKF Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
19 June 2025

2024/25 Annual Report &3k



FeBnkEMD KRG
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

20254 20244
2025 2024
Mg 3E FHET TBTT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LON Revenue 8 50,230 49,549
5 65 B AR Cost of sales (14,373) (13,807)
ER Gross profit 35,857 35,742
H g A R g8 Other income and loss 9 1,766 1,399
8 TR Staff costs 14 (23,060) (23,417)
EEENES Short-term lease rentals (5,510) (5,573)
e Depreciation (408) (197)
HipZiEE R Other operating expenses (13,730) (13,685)
KREEE Loss from operations (5,085) (5,731)
s & A Finance costs 11 (356) (501)
BRFLATE 1B Loss before tax (5,441) (6,232)
PG & A Income tax expense 12 - _
PANCTE YN S Loss for the year attributable to
REEEE owners of the Company 13 (5,441) (6,232)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

20254 20244
2025 2024
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hip2mUWzE (ZH): Other comprehensive income/
(expense):
TEWEFH PEZ 872  Items that will not be reclassified
HH - to profit or loss:
BRATEFAEMEE Fair value changes of equity
W (TR 2 EFA investments at fair value through
Hih2mlz=l) 2 other comprehensive income
HamTAERAFEED ("FVTOCI") 397 (53)
HEnpeiRER 4%  Items that may be reclassified
BmHE - subsequently to profit or loss:
BMEGINEBEE 2 Exchange differences arising on
fEH =% translating foreign operations (4) (7)
AEEHMEE Other comprehensive income/
K (xH) (expense) for the year 393 (60)
AAREE AEL Total comprehensive expense
rEEXELHARE for the year attributable to
owners of the Company (5,048) (6,292)
BREALEBBEIE Loss per share (basic and
(F&AL) diluted) (cents) 17 (0.28) (0.32)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

7 2025 4 3 A 31 H As At 31 March 2025

20254 2024%F
2025 2024
M5t FHExT FA57T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
IRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BENEE Property, plant and equipment 18 1,387 1,777
FREEE Right-of-use assets 19 _ _
MERERS Property rental deposits 1,447 1,408
2,834 3,185
RBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 20 536 519
FEUTER X~ TR R Trade receivables, prepayments
/H{ﬂzf‘iuézﬂ and other receivables 21 2,091 2,338
MERERS Property rental deposits 1,471 1,481
% “ﬁfﬁ.ﬁr?\ﬁf@i@ Equity instruments as at FVTOCI
Wes 2@ T HE 22 1,321 924
THEX Fixed deposits 26,405 25,500
w17 RIS ek Bank and cash balances 21,023 15,848
52,847 46,610
REBAE Current liabilities
JE 15 BR 3k B2 HL Ath B ST X Trade and other payables 23 8,181 9,045
EEEWX Loans from a director 24 30,600 26,500
HEAE Lease liabilities 25 4,692 3,108
43,473 38,653
REBEEFE Net current assets 9,374 7,957
HEERRBEE Total assets less current
liabilities 12,208 11,142
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 25 1,482 4,869
BEEEX Loans from a director 24 9,501 =
10,983 4,869
EERE NET ASSETS 1,225 6,273
B AR & Capital and reserves
f% 2 Share capital 26 194,631 194,631
i Reserves 28 (193,406) (188,358)
ERAE TOTAL EQUITY 1,225 6,273

MN2025F6 190 EEE < 8t -

JIEERERRR

- (J=E=
CHENG Pak Man, Anita

2024/25 Annual Report %
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Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2025

and are signed on its behalf by:

HHE

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

Equity

B RiEE RAfE REEHRE BRERRE EifE 2EER L
Investment Share
Share Share Capital  revaluation options  Translation ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Wz280))  (Wz28a)i) (W 280)(i)
(note 28(a)(i))  (note 28(a)(ii)) (note 28(a)(iii))
Tn TR T T TR T Thn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2023%4A1R At 1 April 2023 194,631 88,794 84123 (321) 2,534 (1) (357,195) 12,565
EEREEREE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - (7) (6,232 (6,239)
BATEAEM2EYEZ Change in fair value of equity
BRIEENTERY instruments at FYTOC| = - - (53) - _ _ 53)
EERERY Changes in equity for the year = = - (53) = %) (6232) (6,292)
2024534318 At 31 March 2024 194,631 88,794 84123 (374) 2,534 ) (363,427) 6,273
1202454818 At 1 April 2024 194,631 88,794 84123 (374) 2,534 (6] (363,427) 6,273
EEREFRER Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - @ (5,441) (5,445)
BAFE;AZMZERE 2 Change in fair value of equity
ERIAEATERY instruments at FVTOCI - - - 397 - = = 397
BREXH Lapse of share options - - - - (186) - 186 .
EERERY Changes in equity for the year - = - 397 (186) @) (5,255) (5,048)
#202553A31A At 31 March 2025 194,631 88,794 84,123 3 2,348 (12) (368,682) 1,225

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

2025% 20244
2025 2024
FHET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHMEELEZ2HELRE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B B Al ES 18 Loss before tax (5.,441) (6,232)
HE Adjustments for:
Y- BELRKEBEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 408 197
BB A Finance costs 356 501
ME KRS A Interest and dividend income (2,259) (711)
BEESEHAI 2K EEE Operating loss before working capital
changes (6,936) (6,245)
FEOEm, m (Increase)/decrease in inventories (17) 144
JEUERZX - TBF A & Decrease/(increase) in trade
H e W ZOR A (38 n) receivables, prepayments and
other receivables 768 (669)
MERER SR Decrease in property rental deposit 10 -
JEHEE K K2 B A SRR (Decrease)/increase in trade and
)10 other payables (898) 939
RBEEBK 2RE Cash used in operations (7,073) (5,831)
fﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬂ Interest on lease liabilities (322) (467)
B EH Income tax paid - (44)
REE R 7R &R Net cash used in operating activities (7,.395) (6,342)
RETBHFEEZ2EELKRE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEWE BELEE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (18) (1,153)
FEAEHTFR Placement of fixed deposits (26,405) (25,500)
TREUE B F K Withdrawal of fixed deposits 25,500 -
2 F] B KRB Interest and dividend received 1,200 672
A/ (AR REEEZ Net cash generated from/(used in)
&5 investing activities 277 (25,981)

2024/25 Annual Report %
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

20255 20244
2025 2024
TET F& 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMETHRELEZ2HEERE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
HEMZKH AL LD Principal elements of lease payment (1,803) (2,843)
RREEFEER Drawdown loans from a director 14,100 26,500
KERMETBIH T FRA Net cash generated from financing
activities 12,297 23,657
RBeRkBELEEER NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
B R B CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,179 (8,666)
EREEH s T & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (4) 9)
MRAB1B B REEEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
5 B AT 1 APRIL 15,848 24,523
M3A31MHZBEEREELZEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
15 B AT 31 MARCH 21,023 15,848
ReRkBESEEBEBE N ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITRIES & Bank and cash balances 21,023 15,848

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—BEn

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

GENERAL INFORMATION

RRBEEEEERAR ((RAAF])
REBRZEAMAIAXREERA
a) o H 3T it #¥ F 5E 4k AClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda> E +* BL £ AR
P& JLBE R ) 0E BR B0 hn & B & B 98R IR
EEHEFRLDIBI08E - AAR 2K MK
REBBEXZMBMR AR ([HR
Frl) R £ °

ARFA—RIRERBAT  HHE
ARz EELBRAGAHHREMN
30 -

KRREZRRE REABEREXHES
Tt X 32 ZKong Fai International
Limited R E SR KZIFER AT - BE B
E (x4l REREKER/RART]
L ERERERRTT o

fm L EL2E

G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 108,
1st Floor, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the "BVI"), is the ultimate parent. Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai (“Mr. Cheng”) and his family members are the
ultimate controlling parties of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

RIFBMBHRRIDBEBEREGTHA
S ([BEQTHIR®]) B ZME@E
REBMBRESERN (BB BRSE
R - HEGAHEN([BBEGFE
) RRB (U TRE(EBM KRS
ZAGERD) - NGAMBRAE
NEBEBAERIMERRAES L
AR (T ETARR]) Z @A B R
RARBUED) 2 BBRE -

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
(hereinafter collectively referred to as (“HKFRS
Accounting Standards”)). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3. ERAHIKREEI(ERMBRE 3

81 & 5 A

- Al T A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

() REFEBFER ZEBIIE
B HEER G ER)

RAFE  AEBRESESUHK
RERBECBEXERATHESS
SHET A€ 8 W R2024F1 A1H
8% 2 1% 7 0A B F JE HA RE o8 I AR R
MEERICBRE AV REEN S

FTER)

EAVKRE SEXRHEDHEE

2R 165 BT

Z185]

EB G BERESEAR

B1RzEE  BHERBR
EBRESES
5% (20204 )
W FE & 5T

EBGFTER  MHEROMIER

FIF 2T AR

BB g ER HEEMELTHE

FETREED

B 75 ) 45 2E A

BIRZEET

BT XAsN  RAFEEERE
A EEERI(EBMBREE
Algst EADHAKBERAFE
KB F R R ARORN K R I
SRR EGARVBRRARKE
WEBAZE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(@) Amendments to HKFRS Accounting

Standards that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or
Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Non-current Liabilities

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to

HKAS 1 with Covenants

Amendments to Supplier Finance
HKAS 7 and Arrangements
HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the initial
application of the above amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

2024/25 Annual Report &3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ERAMIKREEI(ERMBRE
ZRIFETEA) (&)

- Al T A

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) RAEFEBRFERZEBIT(E
BB HESENGTER) (B

RR(EBGHENFE IR - A
BEDRRREKIFRE) M 75 R
HWRFERBRIE) BT R(ER
RREFSTE M HRERNES -
R B 8B 12 B SRE SR A
EHERN D) ZETNEE

Z2020FER] A pLat b B &S A
HEs EE+ _EABENE
MoBRRBHIFERS B ERM
MAAREIMES - B

e HERATHKABIBAR
B 5k 3F i B FE A $ 5 B R
RFEMNEN SRR - A8
mE 2R TEAEEEHRE
T EAARBESRENEE

ZEMMZINFE -

e HWHABZAENZEANR
T EmEARBIERE =K
ERARZETEREATN
Pt T A o fid BB Z 1RFRA]
HRXZETEEANERER
REWRETABETHEE
AEE%ERARMAETLES
FPERZE2R 2/ T A :
2 KZEZEBERR
T AR ZFGHRT T
EREEDBRRDAIER

& o
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(@) Amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants and Amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause:

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification
and additional guidance on the assessment of
right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the
classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within twelve months.

e clarify that the settlement of a liability can
be a transfer of cash, goods or services, or
the entity’s own equity instruments to the
counterparty. If a liability has terms that
could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the transfer of
the entity’s own equity instruments, these
terms do not affect its classification as
current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an
equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3. ERHIREEI(ERMBRE
ZRFEER) (8)

-

Al T A

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

REFEBRFALER ZEEBIT(E
BB HEENGTER) ()

RABTRAORBKENBE RS A
HEAEIEET _BAAS&E
RIS » 2022F (E 3] AR
e - BN WS MR A4
ABTHNROTEZEERNR
SEHERROTEET —EA T &
B BB A (B 6E 8 2 40 15R 5K
ZESTBERAANEE BB’ GE
1TaFfE) ° 20225 BFT RN E— 2
RE BRXBEEHREAEST
2R (BAIRRREDY) A TFE
BERBEAMZRBNIERD
DR-AM FERBTELGESR
B2 BABURR B R &S HRE &
TZEARETROZIER - B
ERARBEMEBEER  UEHB
BEREAESABERBERN RS
HER T _EARAREAEEZ
R -k EFEHNEEBEEERD
ZART HBEARBZRES®E
ARAEMA e BN ERNE TR
WITHFERBEZ EERISER

REBEBEGR  AEEEEWE
RFestBR HRABEETRD
HERB DR - NEERAZ
FER] HEREM BRI EE
REAZE -

(@) Amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date which are
conditional on the compliance with covenants,
the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that
only covenants that an entity is required to
comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date, even if
compliance with the covenant is assessed only
after the reporting date. The 2022
Amendments also specify that covenants with
which an entity must comply after the
reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not
affect the classification of a liability as current
or non-current at the reporting date. However,
if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a
liability is subject to the entity complying with
covenants within twelve months after the
reporting period, an entity discloses
information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk of the
liabilities becoming repayable within twelve
months after the reporting period. This would
include information about the covenants, the
carrying amount of related liabilities and facts
and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the
entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the
Group has applied the new accounting policy
to the classification of liability as current or
non-current retrospectively. The application of
the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ERAMIKREEI(ERMBRE
ZRIFETEA) (&)

- Al T A

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b) BB A RERZHFT REE
A(EBMBHRESERNGITER)

AEBEWERZEFERAIATERM
18 1 R AEMHF R REETKE
B ImE R & F ) -

BEAGTERF215% 2 5]
Amendments to HKAS 21
BEEMBMEEAFI0RRES
SR LERIZE 28R 2B FT
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BEAMBRELERNFEIRRES
WG ERETR2IEE]
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7
(BBHBREEAGHERDZ
CEi

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards
BB G HmEERF185

HKFRS 18

T O ERARATERBRzERENE
[ HAFE A4 2

2 20251 ATB K 2 BRI F
E BRRE A 3

3 20261 A1BA 2B HBNE
[£ HAFE A4 A

4 R2027F1A1B Sk 2B IANE
[ HAFE 4 K

BN X Pt 2 ¥ R] RARERTICKE B M
BmEERGFERDIN  EFZME
HEAME LM REERI(EA
B %5 S R FT R R A] B 2R
TEHGAVBHRREREATE -
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(b) New and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

TRZ A M2

Lack of Exchangeability?

REEREBERNANEECEILHNEELE
HEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'

TRITANDBERGTEZIEE]

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments?

(BEMBREENGSFTER) FEICE - 5
11113

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 113

Bk 25 Rk #EFR

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2026.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards mentioned below, the
Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF

65



AN
IN=

RIS ¥R MY et

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3. ERHIREEI(ERMBRE
ZRFEER) (8)

-

Al T A

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b) EEMERERERZHT REE

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

ACE BB REENG T ER)
(&)
BEEMBHREERFINRREE
MBHEEREIRZIET £
TARERIEZEET]

BB M5 W& 2R £ MR
BEETeMEENT BB EMNE
ARMA FRERR - IR T —IBH
Sh BIINREEFEREF M E
BURSEECREE BES
m LR RRAARE
ZEMBBEEGEE R 2RI -

FEEMBREERFTRHM AR
BRAFEFAEMEERE 2
BETARENKEERELE
FoAREMmME BERAKEEN
HEREMEABEFRERIA
FEWEKER XD 5RI5)RE
s IR A LR 2 1R & HH R AP
Do ARERERARDI/TRZ&
BHEBEHD ERXSARBERS
HARE A B 4% IE SRR B T EE A
AR R EE 2 EMERE
o AN BRI ARERER IR
S REREERR KR 2K
BEMHMARETEANRERE
ZERNGREBRELEEREE
R

ZEEFTN2026F1 A1A K2
BRAZFEREHRER I
ARRIER  ERZFETEY
SEHAREEN MR RRER
BEARE -

(b) New and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments

The amendments to HKFRS 9 clarify the
recognition and derecognition for financial
asset and financial liability and add an
exception which permits an entity to deem a
financial liability to be discharged before the
settlement date if it is settled in cash using an
electronic payment system if, and only if certain
conditions are met.

The disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7 in
respect of investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are amended. In
particular, the entities are required to disclose
the fair value gain or loss presented in other
comprehensive income during the period,
showing separately those related to
investments derecognised during the reporting
period and those related to investments held at
the end of the reporting period. An entity is
also required to disclose any transfers of the
cumulative gain or loss within equity related to
the investments derecognised during the
reporting period. In addition, the amendments
introduce the requirements of qualitative and
quantitative disclosure of contractual terms that
could affect the contractual cash flow based on
a contingent even not directly relating to basic
lending risks and cost.

The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026, with early application permitted.
The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ERAMIKREEI(ERMBRE

|EE 2R (&)

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b) BB A RERZHFT REE

KB AU EREENSTEA)
(#8&)

BB BIREERFI185 [ %
HEWZFREE]

BB RS AR F 1858 [ B
BREZEVREEZEIBEXR &
BRRIRITES S ERE 158
BHRERZ25] - WHAIKEAH
BRELENSHENBRRED
BETEBF1HRZHEEAEK
Oh TR BERANRETE
FIBE RN EBZHENXR : B
FBERENEIPFRBEEERBTE
BEREERNERDEERY
ERAAZEBEER b F
BEITERBFIRIAHIEXE E
BERBGSFERESHERES
B AR EEBIFETR - N )REET
MEEBSTEREIRIB SR
EXRIREBGHENFEIBRIE
BMEFNIEEHEMARE - BBH
EREERF 185k L E b iERE &
BEET ARG R2027F1 1B S 2
BRI FEEHB AR WaliR
RIEA - TERNEHRET B F
BRRPERRPEZRAZT
FRAEEBEEER - AEEBEF
A EEGHBEBMBREELSE
1SR AEBGEUBRENE

e B2 288
BeZEo

=
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(b) New and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements, which sets out
requirements on presentation and disclosures in
financial statements, will replace HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements. This new
HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying
forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1,
introduces new requirements to present
specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide
disclosures on management-defined
performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation
and disaggregation of information to be
disclosed in the financial statements. In
addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor
amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also
made. HKFRS 18, and amendments to other
standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the
presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and disclosures in the future financial
statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

4. BREFTHEER 4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RIF B WK EBIRIEE LKL R
H-BRIETERIAZSREERSE
HRO R FEFE BN XER
KA -

(a) HEEE
REMBRREBARARAE
BEHONFRRNTHERSE - &
AEE Y —EEEAER 2O &R
MERKZAEN  LEENB
BHZERNENZEELER
B SENSZERERZEG -

FRABIBAREERFZESE 2B
EMAGHERE BEAEEKX
EEbEZBRIEAH -

AEENABR S  HEMRS
RED TR -

(b) ShEE]E
() DEEENZHEE
AEBEZEBOMBERERP
BEMIER  HUERKEE
PrEMMEELBERRER
((MeeEB D E-MEA
MBHRAAE T (BIARRQ
AlZNBERZ2HREE) 25 -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries controlled by the group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is obtained by the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances, and cash
flows are fully eliminated.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
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(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from settlement
of or retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.
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(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Over the lease term
or 2 — 5 years
5 years

Furniture and restaurant
equipment
Leasehold improvement

The estimated residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted
on a prospective basis, if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less, for the
Group are primarily restaurant, office, director’s
quarter and storage room.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statements of financial position.
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(d) Leases (Continued)

(e)

(f)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.
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(f)

(9)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income.

Trade receivables and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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(h) Cash and cash equivalents

()

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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(j) Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, such as
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is the promise to
provide food and beverages. Revenue from
operation of Chinese restaurants is recognised
at a point in time when the food and beverages
are served to the customers. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately at the
point the services are rendered to the
customers. For payments settled by credit cards
by customers, the settlement period is normally
within 2 days from the trade date.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

Other income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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(k) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term and other long-term

employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are
recognised at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS Accounting Standards requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages,
salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other
long-term employee benefits are measured
at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS Accounting
Standards requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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(k) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme, the Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
(which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.) For LSP obligation, the Group
accounts for the employer MPF
contributions expected to be offset as a
deemed employee contribution towards
the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS
19.93(a) and it is measured on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative
service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with
employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs.
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U

(m)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
directors and employees are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions with the corresponding increase in
equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
loss before tax recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time
of the transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
see if sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF

79



80

NN R R e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

4. BREFTHBE (8) 4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) %\ (&)

BB IBIRBER S HRERA
HEHLOEMORE  REH
REEBEXEESLHARER
MM RGFTE - BEEHIAERNEH
fhEmRmsk RN S NRER
BIR B B RS - BES RE SR A B AR
Ko 3B FE A8 T8 TR o3 Bl 70 A 22 1 R
SR ERNEEARER o

R EAEERRERREER
HEHEAENHERXZHIEL
BMEMmME  AKREELEEERRA
ReEEBRNERAREERRM

ERE-

AR BINEE BN HER ENHE
EXHME  AKREHEREE
ENHEABD BB ST
ERIFE125RHRE

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(n) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately.
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The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset/CGU for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

Impairment losses are allocated pro rata
amongst the assets of the CGU and recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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(p) Impairment of financial assets
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The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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(p) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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(p) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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(p) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’'s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(p)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. The amount recognised
as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF

87



38

A R R MY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

4. BRGFTEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) #& (E) (q) Provisions (Continued)
1R 15 B B TR & 40 Bl A Z sk ik Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets
BHREEEZRBEMRRT ZHKAK to their original condition, as required by the
BiE REERGKBILESEM terms and conditions of the lease, are
BZEEMTERANKEMER recognised at the date of inception of the lease
R THEESMELRETBNR at the directors' best estimate of the
HETHEPHE - expenditure that would be required to restore
the assets, Estimates are regularly reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
AT EEENEERIR 5. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

EREBARE SRR (WK E4Pmt)
B AAREEFEHEEMBER
AR & R AE D HIE - AR AMRER &
LESYINEMBRERKERS - &
LEfEET MR R REERE 2 &R M
HE R SEANRRELSN - BER
BRAUEHGEEMATFEEE -

AEESHBERBE LA RBEARE
ETEE - MRS EENETER
28 AEEISHER  MRE
AR EEMMARGRE - AEBTE
HAM R R HA RS RERR

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affect both current and
future periods.
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Deferred taxation

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the
tax losses of HK$259,258,000 (2024:
HK$252,258,000) and deductible temporary
differences arising from decelerated depreciation
allowance of HK$5,270,000 (2024: HK$5,385,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient taxable profits will
be available in the future or taxable temporary
differences are expected to reverse in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences, which is a key source of
estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future taxable profits
estimation, a recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which such a revision takes place.

Provision for long service payments (“LSP")

The present value of the long service payment
depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of long service
payment.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks including foreign currency risk, price
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of most of the Group's
entities is HKD in which most of the
transactions are denominated. However, a
subsidiary of the Company has a loan from a
director of HK$24,500,000 (2024: HK$25,500,000)
and the aggregate of fixed deposits and bank
balances totalling HK$36,639,000 (2024:
HK$37,203,000) in Australian dollar (“AUD")
which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 March 2025, if AUD had weakened 5%
(2024: 5%) against HK$ with all other variables
held constant, consolidated loss after tax for
the year would have increased by approximately
HK$607,000 (2024: HK$585,000). If the AUD
had strengthened 5% against (2024: 5%) HK$
with all other variables held constant, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the
consolidated loss after tax for the year.
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(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in equity securities
measured at FVTOCI. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.
The sensitivity rate is increased to 10% in
current year as a result of the recent
performance of the investments.

If equity prices had been 10% (2024: 5%)
higher/lower, other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 March 2025 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$132,000 (2024:
HK$46,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform its obligations is arising from the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
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(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables except for credit card
providers are due within 30 days from the date
of billing.

No credit evaluations are performed for retail
customers that transact in cash, or via major
credit cards. The Group’s trade receivables in
connection with sales settled through credit
cards provider are with high credit rating and
no past default history. Given that these assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of
default is negligible on the basis of high-credit
rating issuers, the expected credit loss rates
were insignificant and close to zero for both
years, and accordingly, no loss allowance was
recognised in respect of trade receivables.

Other receivables/property rental deposits/
bank balances/fixed deposits

No allowance has been recognised for other
receivables and property rental deposits as the
expected loss for these balances is immaterial
under 12-month ECL model based on the
Group's assumption on the rates of default of
respective counterparties taking into account
forward-looking information.

The credit risk on bank balances and fixed
deposits are limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
credit-rating agencies.

2024/25 Annual Report &3k
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H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

6. BIBEKREE (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) REMERER (d) Liquidity risk
AL B /R = E H B IE E Rl The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
TEEM R EER  UEREAE current and expected liquidity requirements to
RHMERBAANERTEMNIREH ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
EARMEHREBIEFTRK - cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.

ERAREBFTESRHEBENS The maturity analysis based on contractual
AR SR E | E S A7 40 undiscounted cash flows of the Group's
F @ non-derivative financial liabilities is as follow:

METINE  ERIER 122F 255% 2% REE
Weighted  On demand

average  orwithin  Between1  Between2 Carrying

interest rate year and2years and>5 years Total amount

T ThT T ThR iR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R2025%3F318 At 31 March 2025

ERBEFREMEAT  Trade and other payables RERAN/A 4,329 - - 4,329 4,329

EZEX Loans from a director 5.25% 30,600 10,000 = 40,600 40,101

HESE Lease liabilities 5.00% 4,855 1,500 = 6,355 6,174
39,784 11,500 - 51,284 50,604

1202438318 At 31 March 2024

EREFREMEM  Trade and other payables MERNA 5,227 - - 5,227 5,227

BEEY A loan from a director TEENA 26,500 - - 26,500 26,500

HERE Lease liabilities 5.00% 3,430 5,050 - 8,480 7977
35,157 5,050 - 40,207 39,704
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

6. MBERERE (F) 6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) FMEER
AEEEHAFEMNRRR %
RkR B HERE (FE25) &
EFEX(MiF24) - AEE®E
HEF B RIRITERERAEN IR
EMEMNXER AEBEEEE
R AEBEHRITESRNER
WAEKN - AR EBRITAERD
FEBRRE  AERBEEREHRE
RSP - NEE B RTR
M RERIRERELPHEK - A
- ANEEEREESEENEME
B YEBREHEEHHEK
) 2= @

NMEZEFHHEEHRAVHERER
MELPERK -k Ll BRI
AEBLSEEMBENFEEEM
BE AREOHBEANEERE
MEEAREANXMGHNEEFH

= 488
=

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk which arises from lease liabilities (note 25)
and loans from a director (note 24). The Group
is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances. The
management of the Group considers the
Group's exposures of the bank balances are not
significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity period and thus they
are not included in sensitivity analysis. The
Group currently does not have a policy on cash
flow hedges of interest rate risk. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not
significant to the consolidated financial
statements. Except as stated above, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities and the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. MBERERE (&)

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

f) EMIENDE

(f) Categories of financial instruments

20254 20244
2025 2024
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
SEMEE Financial assets:
REER AT EN Financial assets measured at
TREE amortised cost 51,977 45,693
BAFEFAEMEEYE Financial assets measured at
NEeMEE FVTOCI
— #mIA — equity instruments 1,321 924
SHEE: Financial liabilities:
BREER AT ER Financial liabilities measured at
=R amortised cost 44,430 31,727
HEAGE Lease liabilities 6,174 7,977

7. TRIAEAQFEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

AVEEEEFEAMBLEEL
RNBEFXHH  HE—HEEMRE
R EBE -RABEMEXNNE
e A NRAFEAEREERARFE
& AR ] 1% 1 1B $ T 450 P ) 8 A\ B &
DR=EER :

FIELEBAE: AKEEFEHR
BESELZ B M [
BEXBEER
Bmis ERER

BHIIRIE °
F2BAHAE: BREFEIBEHREHAE

SNEHBEE E S A

BEH & EEA

BIENBAE-

FIELABWMAE: HBEEEXEHE
ORI N
(=30

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: qguoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted
prices included within level 1
that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

7. $WMIBAFENE (@) 7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
AEEBREE Fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period:
20254 20244
2025 2024
18 FE1E
Level 1 Level 1
FTERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REMQNFENE: Recurring fair value
measurements:
ERAFEFAEMEE Equity instruments at FVTOCI
Wt ERT A
— FThREZSFES — Listed equity securities 1,321 924

BELRENRNFEKRBERETS T

RAFEER RETMNERTALE=
EEREELER -

AEEEMEMEEMNEBRAENER
EHESEEZNAFEMRLD  BEe
AR RPN ©

Fair values of these investments are derived from
quoted bid prices in an active market.

There were no transfers into and transfers out of
any of the three levels during the year.

The carrying amount of the Group’s other financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.
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H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

WA 8. REVENUE
20254 20244
2025 2024
FHET FBTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERKEHRETBAER Revenue from contracts with
ERBARA customers recognised at a point
in time in Hong Kong
— R R — Operation of Chinese restaurants 50,230 49,549
H AR E5 B 9. OTHER INCOME AND LOSS
20254 20244
2025 2024
FHET FBTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWA—SERITER Interest income — bank deposits 1,609 599
& B U A Dividend income 112 73
HeER Rental concession = 1,134
HMEZRESWHEFEF B WA Imputed interest income on rental
deposits 39 39
EXERNHEERERA Imputed interest income on loans
from a director 499 =
2,259 1,845
HIE N B Net exchange loss (493) (446)
1,766 1,399

2024/25 Annual Report F3k
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BZE2025F3 A31 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 March 2025

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

SEFrZXBRERBKEZHAA

AEBNE-BUERAXKE B
LEBEERME—MREDE R
—URDEEAIN  BFRERAM
REBRBEEEERBFED L -

RERDEMFEEOMARITES
(EERERRE)RENEN - EH
E&@@%EfﬁtﬂWA DA e B

CERHEEBNBEREE IE2X
ﬁﬂm@&ﬁﬂ

HWEMERNEEEF

AEBOEBURESL  AEBEAIF
MBEELIFUNEFBREIN

WAKBIBES -REMEAR D
#52 [A I 48 S 6 o

REMEBEEKT  ZEEFER
HBEAEEBKANI0% °

The principal activity of the Group is the operation
of Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong.

The Group manages its business as a single unit
and, accordingly, the operation of restaurants is the
only reporting segment and virtually all the revenue
and operating losses are derived from this business
segment except for some unallocated expenses.

Information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment
focuses on revenue analysis by location of
restaurants. Accordingly, only entity-wide
disclosures, major customers and geographic
information are presented.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION AND MAIJOR
CUSTOMERS

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong
and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Hong Kong.

Revenue is generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

There is no customer contributing over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group for both years from
restaurant operations.
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H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

1. BB EH 11. FINANCE COSTS
2025% 2024%F
2025 2024
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEBENNEEA Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(K15%19) (note 19) 322 467
ENEEKAELNHESR Imputed interest expense arising
MEBR(HHE23) from provision for reinstatement
work (note 23) 34 34
356 501
12. R E A 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

MR AEEREMF I ERBRT G
M 2E B R 5 A HT A IR & 18 DA R 8
At ERTEN R EARFTEF
SRR B -

AEBERBMNEMKIHH B R RA
1 BR25% (20244 : 25%) W K&
VRN PS5 ©

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for both years as the Group has no assessable
profits or has sufficient tax losses brought forward
to absorb the estimated assessable profits in full.

The Group’s subsidiary incorporated in Australia

was subject to Australian income tax at a rate of
25% (2024: 25%).

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

12. FREHE M () 12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

AEENMEREGFABaEME
EW SRR T AT IR SR T ¢

Income tax for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

2025% 20244
2025 2024
FTHERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR A% AT E 1B Loss before tax (5,441) (6,232)
BEBMEHIHE16.5% Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
(20244 : 16.5%) 5T EMMIE  of 16.5% (2024: 16.5%) (898) (1,028)
BERBRMBANB B E Tax effect of income that are
not taxable (366) (118)
AN BRI Tax effect of expenses that are
not deductible 131 121
REREREZEL Tax effect of temporary
mBEE differences not recognised (19) (52)
RERNTIEEER Tax effect of tax losses
MR E not recognised 1,366 1,380
AL A ERNHIEEE Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (211) (298)
EHMAAEERLERN Effect of different tax rates of a
Bt B & & #Y S [B) B Y subsidiary operating in other
T jurisdiction (3) (5)
FriS i & A Income tax expense - -

EREHKR AEEERYAHE
/5 18 49259,258,0003 7T (20244 :
252,258,000/%8 70 ) MORUR 3T & B T K
5,270,000 7T (20244 : 5,385,000
Bor) c TRARIEE AR EFR - AR
RACH IR T HEEM - HARER
BEHBEEE -AEB LM KREBAK
HEBDESHBHREHEER &
MEMFARIEEBY A ER AR o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$259,258,000 (2024:
HK$252,258,000) and decelerated depreciation
allowance of HK$5,270,000 (2024: HK$5,385,000)
available for offsetting against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The
aforesaid unused tax losses of the Group have not
yet been agreed by respective tax authorities. All tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely for both
years.

2024/25 Annual Report &3k



Are SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. FEEIE

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

AEEFEEBEECHRNATSE:

The Group’s loss for the year has been arrived at
after charging the following:

20254 20244

2025 2024

FET FAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

% SR N & Auditor’'s remuneration 430 430
ERENEMN Building management fee and rates 4,167 4,137
ERAFEEKA Cost of inventories consumed 14,373 13,807
NEEXERBREH Utilities and cleaning expenses 4,568 4,621

14. EERABEX

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

20254 20244

2025 2024

FBxT TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

& TE4L KOEBRL Salaries, bonuses and allowances 22,316 22,207
ROKAE A FT B 50 Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 744 1,210

23,060 23,417

ENBSHEMAL
AEBAFENTARRSFMA L
b BE—R(Q024F  =R)ESE
HEFEME AW 15 DT iR o H
R =% (20245 : W) A I & 5 B
N Pt

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included two (2024: three) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 15. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2024: two) individual are set out
below:

20255 20244

2025 2024

FET T& T

HK$'000 HK$'000

e o TEA ROERL Salaries and allowances 1,430 870
RIRAE FFT 814 Retirement benefits scheme

contribution 36 36

1,466 906

2024/25 Annual Report F3k
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

14. EEGAEX (&) 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)
FENBRSEHMAL(E) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
FENEE DT The emoluments fell within the following band:

2025 20244

2025 2024

A" A

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

ZE L 21,000,000/ 7T HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 2

AEBEEMEFEARERNASE No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of

MEMEESXRAE &S FMA M the employees of the Group or the five highest paid

ERME  EARSIMEMIMAKRER individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining

FAE R BER S - the Group or as compensation for loss of office for

both years.

EFEMEFEAN  LEXMEENE None of the employees has waived any emoluments

FRIE - for both years.
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H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

EEZNME

RAFER EFRTHRAHENSAR
EEREMRAREB(RRUEDD Z

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing

WERWT : Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is
as follows:
EXEHK
ik B¢ BAGEMX EERE @zt
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries benefit scheme allowance Total
TEn TER TEn TEn THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
YnES: Executive directors:
2y Skl Mr. Cheng Hop Fai” - 45 - 375 420
HRHTL Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 - 378
Sl Gl Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita® = 360 18 360 738
gREXLO Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily" - 520 18 - 538
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors (“INED"):
BEARLY Mr. Law Toe Ming® 27 - - . 27
HERLA Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 7 - - - 7
RBERE Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny n - - - n
BER LAY Mr. Law Kwok Tai® 56 - - - 56
2025F A5t Total for 2025 221 1,285 54 735 2,301

2024/25 Annual Report F3k
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

15. EERTHRAZMNE () 15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
EENME (F) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

FREAARAANBADESARABEMIAABUNH S
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EFRAEHN
ik e s EIf FE2H )

Employer's

contribution to

a retirement Housing

Fees Salaries  benefit scheme allowance Total
THEL TAL THEL TAL ThEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BTES: Executive directors:

DEBEEE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai - 160 - 900 1,060

gamxt Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 - 378

grgat Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita - 360 18 360 738

gRExt Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily = 480 18 - 498

BUHTES: Independent non-executive

directors (“INED"):

BERRL Mr. Law Toe Ming 7 - - - 7

RERLE Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 72 = = = 72

REAELE Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny 72 - - - 72

20245 &5t Total for 2024 216 1,360 54 1,260 2,890

Hiz - Notes:

M 202468 A16H B B ARME - B M Mr. Cheng Hop Fai retired on 16 August 2024.
A B8 B 8 - #EARRQF E FE & Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita was appointed as
BELZTAEETARNARESHALKE - chairperson of the Board and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily

was appointed as managing Director on the same day.

@ 7A2024F8A16H BIERH L ERME - @ Mr. Law Toe Ming retired on 16 August 2024.

®  JA2024F6A19R BEEF A ERT A ®  Mr. Law Kwok Tai was appointed as independent
BT IEHITES - non-executive director on 19 June 2024.
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EERTHAIME ()

15.

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.

EEHHS (H)

RAFER  TRERREMESY
" HE SRR B REE M S (20245
i) -

REMAEER - B E L &5 MK
LA BB TEAL -

RAFER AEEYEREFAES
SN ERBE  ERTREIREMARL
AN 5= [ B 6 B2 B - k1 7 B B 4

g -

AEE-HEREREERMHKEHEY
THENES -

RS

16.

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2024: HK$Nil).

No discretionary bonuses have been paid or are
receivable by directors for both years.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

The Group has been providing accommodation,
which is leased from a related party, to the directors

at no charge.

DIVIDEND

17.

RAEER  ARARYTRIMHE
IRAE A A% B (20244 : T L) B K
EHRURTRIRZZ N EAEE
(2024%F : TH L)

R IE B

17.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the
Company during the year (2024: HK$Nil), nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2024: HK$Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

BERERNNEEBRIVRBATE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the following:

20255 20244
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
BB Loss
RARES ANEEEE Loss attributable to owners of the
Company (5,441) (6,232)
RHH B Number of shares
AR EEREREER Weighted average number of
MEFEHEBRE (A7) ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating basic loss per
share (Note) 1,946,314,108 1,946,314,108

Bat: REMBEFER  AREOERE

R BEREEELRR -

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

Note: There was no dilutive potential ordinary share for the

Company'’s share option for both years.
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

18. W% - WERRE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BRRBERE HENEEE b
Furniture and
restaurant Leasehold
equipment  improvements Total
TR THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE Cost
M202364 718 At 1 April 2023 10,871 7,149 18,020
NE Additions 10 1,143 1,153
R202453R318 & At 31 March 2024 and
202454718 1 April 2024 10,881 8,292 19,173
NE Additions 18 - 18
®2025%3H31H At 31 March 2025 10,899 8,292 19,191
AAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
m2023F4H1H At 1 April 2023 10,050 7,149 17,199
FAZW (Hi213) Charge for the year (note 13) 197 - 197
M2024%3A318 & At 31 March 2024 and
2024547818 1 April 2024 10,247 7,149 17,396
FAXHE HiF13) Charge for the year (note 13) 179 229 408
R2025%3A31H At 31 March 2025 10,426 1,378 17,804
REE Carrying amount
®2025F3A31H At 31 March 2025 473 914 1,387
20243 H31H At 31 March 2024 634 1,143 1,777

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

19. EHEEE 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

20254 20244
2025 2024
FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

HEBENFNBERX Interest expense on lease liabilities
(BIEERBER) (included in finance costs) 322 467
HIHIHER @M E B Expenses relating to short-term lease 5,510 5,573

HERSRHABNFBEHNME
31(b) °

REMBEFER  AEBEESETH
EMEEREERSZ HEARIEE
FEN1ESEFE (20244 : 1254 ) 3]
Vo ERRREMBIER LR
EFREERETRAAERMES - &
ETHENRLTH A RERSE
ER AEERBAONTEE T
TE A # A 58 B B 1T Y HARR o

BENHES S EM12% (20244F -
12%) tHEBEMA EHENFTARE
HEPRNETHZEFEREMNK -

FRAEEEZ511,0008 TE R EE
EE2mEREFGE -

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out
in note 31(b).

For both years, the Group has various leased
properties for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 to 5 years (2024: 1
to 5 years), and have no extension and termination
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

Lease of one of the restaurants contains variable
lease payment that is based on the excess of 12%
(2024: 12%) on sales and the fixed monthly lease
payment over the lease term. No such amount was
paid/payable for both years.

The right-of-use assets with the carrying amount of
HK$7,511,000 were fully impaired in prior years.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

20. F& 20. INVENTORIES
20255 20244
2025 2024
FHET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Kk Food and beverage 536 519
21. EWERA AR R EMmERR 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

20254 20244
2025 2024
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

R BB S Z TS A FE UER 3K Trade receivables from restaurant
operations 101 510
ENES Prepaid rental expense - 512
H MR Prepayment of other expenses 460 370
Ze Deposits 999 894
& W B Interest receivables 521 22
H th & Uk 3R Other receivables 10 30
2,091 2,338

BEBERZURASMERARER -

28R Z N IR IR R IR B I
REERHOBREITET

0Z230H 0 to 30 days

Most of the restaurant customers settle in cash and
credit cards.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables from
restaurant operations, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

20255 20244
2025 2024
FHE T F& 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
101 510

M202543A31H - BREEBHBED
i 2R B R R E A B U BR 3k (20244 -

THT) -

78R B K R A R T (E (T HE I
S o B AR 2 7 FE UK BR SR BB UL T
.

As of 31 March 2025, no trade receivables from
restaurant operations were past due but not
impaired (2024: HK$Nil).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. All trade receivables from restaurant
operations are denominated in HK$.
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H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

22. AV EFT AEMEE WS E 22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI
wmwIT A
2025%F 20244
2025 2024
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALTRE Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 1,321 924

23.

BAVFEAAEMBEERSWED T

HIABTTETE °

FEAS BRI HL A FE A 3K

HKS.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Equity instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in

2025%F 20244

2025 2024

FERT FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEASBR X (KT 7F) Trade payables (Note) 2,439 2,453

ezt & H Accruals 1,864 2,392

H th & 1< 3K Other payables 26 382

P Provisions 3,852 3,818

8,181 9,045

Krat: BARFIZERIKE B BN IRER DT Note: The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the
LU date of receipt of goods, is as follows:

20254 20244

2025 2024

FERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

0£60H 0 to 60 days 2,321 2,399

60H X k£ Over 60 days 118 54

2,439 2,453

REEmFEREEA/60XK -

Fr B A ARG A TTETHE ©

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

60 days.

All trade payables are denominated in HK$.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

24, EEEH 24. LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR
Mt % ZomEJyEE R E R A e The amounts are unsecured and non-interest
10,000,000/ JT ZE 720264 418 bearing. HK$10,000,000 is repayable on 1 April
1€ 32 i #2 %830,600,0007% 7T (2024: 2026 and the remaining balance of HK$30,600,000

25.

26,500,000/ T) BIZBE1Z Bk (EE -

EXZERNERFNERDB5.25% -

(2024: HK$26,500,000) is repayable on demand.

The effective interest rate of the loans from the
director is 5.25% per annum.

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

—%R
BB FEIRBME

BRMFEMERDLE

EEREMNR REHENRZAE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
20255 2024 20255 20244
2025 2024 2025 2024

TR TAT TER ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 4,855 3,430 4,692 3,108
More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 1,500 5,050 1,482 4,869

More than two years, but not more
than five years = - - _

6,355 8,430 6,174 1,977
B ARBBER Less: Future finance charges (181) (503)  FEANA  TEENA
HEETHNRA Present value of lease obligations 6,174 7,977 6,174 7,977
o 2EARESEE Less:Amount due for settlement within
GIRRRBEEET) 12 months (shown under
current liabilities) (4,692) (3,108)
REABRIAEENSE Amount due for settlement after
BIRRERBEEET) 12 months (shown under
non-current liabilities) 1,482 4,869
ERARBEMNIEEBRTER 5.00% The incremental borrowing rates applied to liabilities

(20244 : 5.00%) °

MEHREREYIABITFHE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

were 5.00% (2024: 5.00%).

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.
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26. RAREERMEE

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

26. SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL RISK

MANAGEMENT
20254 20244
2025 2024
FHExT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JARE ¢ Authorised:
5,000,000,000% & % & & 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
0.1 L) T 38 % HK$0.1 each 500,000 500,000
BEEITRER Issued and fully paid:
1,946,314,108% & IR E(E 1,946,314,108 ordinary shares of
0.1BTTHERK HK$0.1 each 194,631 194,631

AEETRARYEERREAEE
HERE AN  LBBEERA
35 P TR ER RS ERAD
# -

AEBREBERBRLAIREERSHE
AEBEBEAGRE ARBELHEN
M MAREENR RS ESH
HETHAB -RTHRFIABELNE
B AKEFRESHEREXN &
Tl BB BEEHMER B
ERBBEBAHEEENRDER -

AREBURRER LR SEEERE
AR o Z L RIRB AR R IR AR E EFT
B -RELABREBERAMEAMFEHER -

N 5% [ 4 455 2 B6 S P _E T B i — SINED
BARBREVBAED25%HEETT

B RBFBHRE -

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion
to risk. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the payment of dividends, issue new shares,
buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
shareholders equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total share equity divided by total assets. Total share
equity comprises share capital and other reserves.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for
the Group is in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange, it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of the issued shares.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

26. RAREERKRERE (&) 26. SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
AEEGAHAINEKERNDALE The Group receives a report from the share
EEENREARNDESORE - ZW registrars monthly on substantial share interests
ERRTHABERE - LARAT showing the non-public float and it demonstrates
2FNBEET25%HREE - 20255 continuing compliance with the 25% limit
3H31H ' #BiB25% (20244 : B 1B throughout the year. As at 31 March 2025, over
25%) DB AREEE ° 25% (2024: over 25%) of the shares were in public
hands.
27. KRB BN KRR FEZE K 27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) ARABHMBMRR K (a) Statement of financial position of the
Company
20254 20244
2025 2024
B 7 FET FHET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current asset
KRB R RIKE Investment in subsidiaries - -
RBEE Current asset
w17 RIS R Bank and cash balances 169 170
RBEE Current liability
EETE A Accruals 15 15
EEFE Net assets 154 155
BEXRf#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 26 194,631 194,631
G Reserves 27(b) (194,477) (194,476)
LB Total equity 154 155
R2025F6 A19HEEE 2 #t Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June
K- BEBHTIIESRKREE 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:
[ =E= BWMHE
CHENG Pak Man, Anita CHENG Pak Lai, Lily
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27. AR EMBARRKREEHEZB R
(%

it

il

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) XAFREEB X

(b) Movement in the Company’s reserves

RiEE RaiE BRERG 2ifER EH
Share Capital Share option ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
(Wiz286)))  (Hie280)0)
(note 28(3)()))  (note 28(a)i)
TER TEL TARL TARL TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2023E4R18 At 1 April 2023 88,794 113,143 2,534 (398,943) (194,472)
FEER Loss for the year - - - @) (4)
R202443A318 & At 31 March 2024 and
20244518 1 April 2024 88,794 113,143 2,534 (398,947) (194,476)
FEBR Loss for the year - - - (1) (1)
BRELN Lapse of share options - = (186) 186 =
#2025%3431R At 31 March 2025 88,794 113,143 2,348 (398,762) (194,477)
28. f#1® 28. RESERVES

(a) BEHNMEEMEN
(i) RF#E
PR AN (B R R A B Z R mE
BENERETRMPELENE
B -RAGERNERXA
REQBIFREDR)EH -

(i) X E
AEBMNERFEERZR1992
FIORAMEESEHELED -
EREAQARABREME R
AR 7N 42 TH (B M 2517 A AR A
MEEZEHNERE -

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a
result of the group reorganisation in
October 1992. It represents the difference
between the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company in
exchange for the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of subsidiaries.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAF

113



114

A R R MY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

28. f#1E (&)

28. RESERVES (Continued)

(a) REHNHEENE W (E)
(iii) (B 5% 7
EH#EERERRERIIE
B EHBmERMEED
FIEINEZ R - LB BIRE
iR B RS R P 5T 4(b) P E
8 EIIJ-I_EkﬁﬁJEIE °

29. BIRETTE

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 4(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

RN B FR201095 A 108 £ 43 &) B8 I
REET &) (1201051 81)) K2020%F5A8
HE M > &N A KR2020F8 A3H £
THRREBFARS EERERZBE
e AR s 2l ([ 202051 &) 22

201051 & - el [z F5t &) - RiE
201051 &l - T/ BELEMEME

AXHE o SR - BIE20105T 2R H T
A RITER B EGEE ] T ATT
i HZABSF20105T 2B E
FHBE1T7TEREX o BrRIERIK20205T
M8 QIR B 42 U - B RI20205ME81 2
AU EE203068A3F A1k °

20105 T2 E MR B BRIATA ERK
2HEER TFEREEL BB SER
AR E HydcsE B B ¢

(a) AEBUEMKE RRRAKER
BhRENIMNER((REER])
MEREERES (BREHATE
EOMTESMEBYFNTE
%)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme”) which expired
on 8 May 2020. By shareholders’ resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 3 August
2020, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2020 Scheme”, and, together with
the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”). No further share
options could be offered under the 2010 Scheme.
However, any outstanding share options granted
under the 2010 Scheme shall continue to be
exercisable subject to the rules of the 2010 Scheme
and the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. Unless terminated earlier in accordance with
the rules of the 2020 Scheme, the 2020 Scheme
shall be valid and effective until 3 August 2030.

The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to recognise the
commitments and contributions of the following
eligible participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards:

(a) any employee or director (including executive
director, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”);

2024/25 Annual Report &3k



Are SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. B AEET & (&)

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

b) EEZS2HNBRREERZHE
20105 S A KB E MK E AR
SERKEEENEMER - %
A FEALT - REBA EE
BmoRP EREk SR MHE
e EBREERH EREE
HAEBHKEER(RBAM
E)RER : &

(0 EXS2RNBER/THIKY
AEEFFHRERR (BEBERM
E)EHEBEMAL -

20205t E/& B ) 2 £ AN 2 5] g H9 (R A
SENIMNZRRBESR  &H17
BAE SRBEXEZ (BRBY
HRTESE) FTERRARESTS
ERA/BHICHAEBNEK S
% BRMEREFHEBONEMEER
B AR HEE KPRk
B BRE  (FRRBRERIAS
EREAREHAREENER © 2020
AAEIRRAEER2EERHNAQR
BHEBAEZNOKE  EEERATD
ERESE

(a) BBAEER2EER(EETHER
T LERARE K

(b) W5l e BE KA E 77 AR5
BERSEENFEXRBBE
i 15 55 1 & R 3R B = i 2k 15 B A
RAEEHNRBAER -

M202543H31H * "R AR %
%+ 2/ 4H24,000,0008% (20244 :
26,000,0000% ) &) AR 41752 O BE AR A2 -
HEREBBEZETRMA1.2% (2024
F:1.3%)°

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

(b) any advisor, consultant, professional, agent,
contractor, customer, provider of goods and/or
services, business or joint-venture partner of
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity whom the Board in its sole discretion
considers eligible for the 2010 Scheme on the
basis of his or her contribution to the Group or
the Invested Entity (as the case may be); and

() any person whom the Board in its sole
discretion considers has contributed or will
contribute to the Group or to the Invested
Entity (as the case may be).

The purpose of the 2020 Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to any full-time or
part-time employees, chief executives, officers or
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group, substantial shareholders
and any professional advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and distributors who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the business affairs, development and growth of the
Group as incentives or rewards to recognise and
acknowledge their contributions to the Group. The
2020 Scheme will provide the eligible participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives:

(a) to motivate the eligible participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of
the Group; and

(b) to attract, retain or otherwise maintain an
on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group.

As at 31 March 2025, the Company had
24,000,000 (2024: 26,000,000) share options
outstanding under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 1.2% (2024: 1.3%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

29. B AERT & (&)

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

B #E20205 8 7T &% &9 BB R P
TR BEE  aXTBBBE
194,631,4108 & 19 (X B AR Q& 1E
20205t 8B ER M B BITRAD
10%) ' BRIEE ENUS#E — R R
o ARIEZERTEI A REIR i R AT
FERVFTA M AR TTE BB AR T Al
TETHRMNDBEE  TEHBEAARAQF
NRFBEEITRMHAIZ30% °

B IE20105F 21 F2020:1 B E - £
ARTEARAES THREHIEE
MRS5S B BB AR BRE
WBESARARMBBYIERITES
BB E - MREMRF ARG EER
BB IERNTESSMMS B A5
BANBRE  SERERLBEZA
128 AAZALTEREHBRED
FrEBEREETEMBEITNREE R
BBAARARIBEEITRMDM0.1% + B
BEEEEHBNRMDKRTEE)
8 185,000,000/8 T * Bl % #E — F K
o B BE AR A 4 B S AR R B R R AL
ERA - EBMBARKARRMAEZL
AEAL(EERLEMMRA) AHRER
e

FUART © BIE2010F 521512020
FHE EEMAI2EABREAR BT
F2HEENBERE (BRERETEMRK
TEA BE AR ) 77 (F T 2 17 AN 4% 2%
TR MRS NEHBRBARRE 2
TR EIT1% - AR BB LR 5 - 8
ERBREAE  MABSEE R
BABARERR -
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The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2020 Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 194,631,410 shares
(10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the time the 2020 Scheme was established) unless
further shareholders’ approval has been obtained.
The overall limit in the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Schemes
shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time.

Pursuant to each of the 2010 Scheme and the 2020
Scheme, each grant of options to any director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
must be approved by all independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted or to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of such grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options must
be approved by the shareholders of the Company,
with the grantee(s), his associates and all core
connected persons (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company abstaining from voting in
favour.

Subject to the aforesaid, pursuant to each of the
2010 Scheme and the 2020 Scheme, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the
limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval
with such participant and his associate abstaining
from voting.
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29. B AEET & (&)

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

RIZ201051 & - BREAER L A
HIEE30RAZME M - X BAEE
AXAEARE - RIE202057 8 - &
ERAERLBHRIELEXRAA
AARBRXEEARENERER
KRB - I 8151.0078 TTEY
PHREFRBERREBRENKE
B AZBREREE/E R TEX
AL B ER

REZFTE BERENTEEED
BRAT=ZEFHNERRE  WBEER
LA AEEXEBXAEARE
R 5IRAR R BB AD W E (i)
BREOBEH(AREXER)BXMEAR
BRAINARRBROKTE: UK
(i) R R AP EYE(E ©

RIEZEFE EEQUEERER
E2EE R ERE XA E
REA BN AR - BRibz s &
BRABREREMARER  TEKX
RRERT ATERRE -

REZSHE BEEATEEFQRE
FE 0388 40110 HAR P B0 £ AT 5 PR 77 (20
RAE - BRBMRMTERBEEY A S
1 EHO% + K 10F B0 Bik — 8
B R -
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Options granted under the 2010 Scheme must be
accepted in writing within 30 days from the date of
offer. No consideration is payable on grant of
option. Pursuant to the 2020 Scheme, an option
shall be deemed to have been granted to the
grantee and to have taken effect when the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of
the offer for such option duly signed by the
grantee, together with a non-refundable remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by
the Company within 30 business days after the date
of offer.

The exercise price under the Schemes of the option
shares shall at least be the highest of (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; (ii) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer, which shall be a business day; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
granted to any participant by the Board at its
absolute discretion and subject to any conditions as
it may think fit. Save for this, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be achieved by
the grantee nor any minimum period for which a
share option must be held before a share option
can be exercised.

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
exercised by the grantee at any time during a period
determined and notified by the Board of Directors
provided that such period shall be not more than 10
years commencing from the date of grant and
expiring on the last business day of such 10-year
period.
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#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

29. B AERT & (&)

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

T RIS AREZ ST 81K L /8B IR E
R E BN LA KR2025F3H31H
202453 A31HHI#REE ¢

Details of movements in the share options granted
under the Schemes and the balances at 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024 are set out below:

720235
4R18 K
20244 R2025%
38318 REREN 3A31H
2% BitiB# T BRITEE I K A7 2 L e R AT 6
Outstanding
as at
1 April 2023 Lapsed/  Outstanding
Exercise and expired as at
Exercisable price 31 March during 31 March
Participants Date of grant period per share 2024 the year 2025
(Hizta) (Hiztb)
(note a) (note b)
BT
HK$
B% 2017%10A238  2017%10A23HZ
2025%10A228
Directors 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to
22 October 2025 0.177 26,000,000 (2,000,000) 24,000,000
TRERTTE
Exercisable at the end of the year 26,000,000 (2,000,000 24,000,000
it - Notes:

(@) 20174108238 2 H # 88 A 4 R %
A #8948 {f 5T A F B 52,906,000
BT o R A HM30%N X T B H
2017410823 BB 52 8 © 30%
2018 10HA23HH B + £ £40% RN
201951023 & - AR AR H R
SRR ARHATNKRTER0177ETT

(b) ZEERALEAT2024F8A16BEEE L
FNITES -

HZE202543A31BItFEE > AEEH
I R g AR R IR A B AR 1 SR A ]
FX (2024F : L) - RWER
KEEREETESRRD - HE2025
#3A318 L& & 52,000,0000% &
ARAE LK (20244 « £E) o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(a)

(b)

The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the
share options on 23 October 2017 was HK$2,906,000.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
immediately on the date of grant, 23 October 2017.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
on 23 October 2018 and the remaining 40% were
vested on 23 October 2019. The closing price of the
Company'’s share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.177.

Mr. Law Toe Ming retired as an INED on 16 August
2024.

The Group did not recognise the expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2025 in relation to share
options granted by the Company (2024: HK$Nil).
No share options were exercised or granted for both
years. 2,000,000 share option lapsed during the
year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).
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30. TEMMBE QA

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

30. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

H 22024%F K2025F3A31H T &
MEBARFFBIDT :

L ELUAVE-E30E

Place of incorporation/

Name operation

ERKE:

Directly held:

CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited ABRUHEE/BH

CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands
("BVI")/Hong Kong

BRERE

Indlirectly held:

CCC Investments (BVI) Limited ABRABE/ AR

CCC Investments (BVI) Limited BVI/Hong Kong

AN EEBRERAR Bk

City Chiu Chow Management & Hong Kong
Consultants Company Limited

ANEEER AT B

City Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited ~ Hong Kong

ERERBRAT i
Honcert Development Limited Hong Kong
GV Australia Pty Ltd |

GV Australia Pty Ltd Australia

* o ERORERE R B R R R
AREREM  BFEHIRE - hEEEE
RESXERERZBAETMOE - B
BERAEECRMDAARARBERE
Bk T = B R A R A R #94,000,0008%
BRRERTERMDBIIBALES -

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

BERBEN/  ARAFBERORE
ERTRANEE HENLA TRXH

Proportion of nominal

Class of shares held/ value of issued share

nominal value of issued capital held by the
share capital Company Principal activities
Rk 100% REER
187,325,513 L
Ordinary 100% Investment holding
HK$187,325,513
LERIET 100% REHR
Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding
ERR100% T 100% REEERH
(BRFEETR
10,000 7C) *
Ordinary HK$100 100% Provision of
(Non-voting deferred management services
HK$10,000)*
ERR100% T 100% FEER
(BRFEETR
2,000,000%7T) *
Ordinary HK$100 100% Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000)*
LRER100% T 100% GBS
(BERFEELR
20,000,000 7C) *
Ordinary HK$100 100% Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$20,000,000)*
LB%10,00087T 100% MEEE
Ordinary AUD10,000 100% Property development

The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
and have no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up. These non-voting deferred
shares were indirectly held by the Company except for
4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of Honcert
Development Limited which were owned by outside
parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

31. LKERERERMETE

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) METHELNEEBHER
TRANAEBREEHELN
BEESY BRASKIREE
Ho-METHELNEELEE
HenBtBARRBRERS
AEBGERENERTHRE
ABREREMEIE -

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

FE
720245 (WA),/BIX R A 120255
4818 (W9, 11) ReER HERE 3A31H
Interest
(income)/ Payment

expenses of lease 31 March
1 April 2024 (note 9, 11)  Cash flows liabilities 2025
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R —REERIE (M iH24)
Loans from a director (note 24) 26,500 (499) 14,100 - 40,101

MEBE(HH25)
Lease liabilities (note 25) 1,977 322 - (2,125) 6,174
34,477 (177) 14,100 (2,125) 46,275
120235 MEFX x ft 120245
4A1H (Hizt11) ReER HEAE 3A318
Interest Payment

expenses of lease 31 March
1 April 2023 (note 11) Cash flows liabilities 2024
TET TET TET AT TAEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BN —2EERE (M 724)
A loan from a director (note 24) - - 26,500 - 26,500

MEEEWiE25)

Lease liabilities (note 25) 10,820 467 - (3,310) 7,977
10,820 467 26,500 (3,310) 34,477
G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BEXNEREBESRAH 2024/25 Annual Report &3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. FEBRTREBRME (B)

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) AREERERHAHE

FeReRERTRARNEESHR
BRENUATRIE :

(b) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows for leases comprise the
following:

20254 20244

2025 2024

FHET AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

REER S MEN Within operating cash flows 5,832 6,040
RREdRERERN Within financing cash flows 1,803 2,843
7,635 8,883

32. BEXRS

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

RER AEEREFERER
ARl ([EHRD)BERETYER
RIBEEE o RFE I FIWEAY
A4 54,320,000 7T (20244
4,320,000 7T) ° ’A20254F3 A
31 BERFARBWMERER
& W E% % 51,080,000 T
(20244 : 1,080,000/ 7t = 5t A
REBYWERELS) - K2025F
K2024%3A318 » I & fE %
FE FEETFE 2 (20244 : 360,000
BIT) °

& #| =Golden Toy Investments
Limited ([ Golden Toy ) #) & &
B2 7A - mGolden Toy M2 EE
BIRAB - REEGETERE
B ZEANEEABREARA
HITEFHESBEE BHALK
T+ BMAFLLTNBAEL T
BRENRARBREZER QA
Kong Fai WE =B A °

2024/25 Annual Report F3k

(@) During the year, the Group leased certain

properties for its restaurant operations from
Homley Development Limited (“Homley"”).
Rentals charged by Homley during the year
amounted to HK$4,320,000 (2024:
HK$4,320,000). At 31 March 2025, rental
deposit of HK$1,080,000 (2024:
HK$1,080,000) was included in current
property rental deposits. At 31 March 2025,
there is no accrued rental payable to Homley of
(2024: HK$360,000).

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) whose
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned
by a discretionary trust the objects of which
include Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak
Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are also executive
directors of the Company and beneficial
owners of Kong Fai, the Company’s ultimate
holding company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2025 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2025

32. BERS (&)

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) RFAN AEBRAZHWEXFR
AR (=8 ]) AR —EE=ED
¥ AFEZHUKBHNES A
900,000 7T (20244 : 900,000
BIT) °c R20253A318 © it A
REBMERERcNTEERE A
150,000 7t (20244 : 150,000
BT ARDMERELRS) °
20254 %2024%3 8318 » I
EREMSBHETES -

S —ZGolden ToyHy & &K B A
E__l o

O RER AEBRFERES
BRAR (&%) BB — @3
RE-AFEREKRBNES
£1,180,0007% 70 (20244 :
1,200,0007% 7T ) ° 202543 A
318 ' SFARBMERERZRESH
FHEIE S A241,0005 7T (2024
F : 241,000 LR AR BN WD %
HE®RSE) - 20255 k20244
3A31H T EEMNFERNER
e -

AEEZWNEENRBAR M
Z I B2 Golden ToyWHEZEE &
B Aa o

(d) RER AEEEBESZHASER
AERI([BED)ETRS - AF
£ A6 & 38 & #) © %8 /375,000
7 7T (20244 : 492,000/8 7T) °
M2025F3A31H » BB
#) FX T8 20,0007 7T (20244 -
40,000/ 7T) °

BmERHN2ENBLR M
S AIR Golden ToyH E#E 2 &
B AR -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(b)

During the year, the Group leased a unit of a
residential building from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”). Rental charged by
Hover City during the year amounted to
HK$900,000 (2024: HK$900,000). At 31 March
2025, rental deposit of HK$150,000 (2024:
HK$150,000) was included in current property
rental deposits. At 31 March 2025 and 2024,
no accrued rental was payable to Hover City.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Golden Toy.

During the year, the Group leased an office
from Sky Global Investments Limited (“Sky
Global”). Rentals charged by Sky Global during
the year amounted to HK$1,180,000 (2024:
HK$1,200,000). At 31 March 2025, rental
deposit of HK$241,000 (2024: HK$241,000)
was included in current property rental
deposits. At 31 March 2025 and 2024, no
accrued rental was payable to Sky Global.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

During the year, the Group entered into
transactions with Hung Yick Metal Company
Limited (“Hung Yick”). Sales to Hung Yick
during the year amounted to HK$375,000
(2024: HK$492,000). At 31 March 2025,
receivable from Hung Yick was HK$20,000
(2024: HK$40,000).

Hung Yick is a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2025 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2025

2. BEXRS (&) 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
() MAHMAE E=NHM(BNEE (e) The remuneration of directors, which are key
EBABWNFM) OT : management personnel during the period was
as follows:
20254 20244
2025 2024
FTHExT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
4 & H i1 F Salaries and other benefits 2,020 2,620
RREF AR Retirement benefits cost 54 54
2,074 2,674

2024/25 Annual Report 44k G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BRERERERAT | 23



124

B2
Financial Summary

¥E RESULTS
BE3A31ALEE
Year ended 31 March
20214 20224 20234 20244 20255
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
FE&T FA& T FE&ET F&ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Revenue 37,173 114,637 45,181 49,549 50,230
B 15 B & 18 Loss before tax (8,517) (13,776) (21,586) (6,232) (5,441)
F 2R & Income tax expenses (243) (304) (44) - -
NN TR A FELL Loss for the year
ZFEEIE attributable to owners
of the Company (8,760) (14,080) (21,630) (6,232) (5,441)
SEHaE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
MA3H31H
At 31 March
20214 20224 20234 20244 20254
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
T&T FH&E T TFET T&T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEE Total assets 81,595 53,470 31,503 49,795 55,681
BE®EE Total liabilities (33,129) (19,093) (18,938) (43,522) (54,456)
- EnE L] Total equity 48,466 34,377 12,565 6,273 1,225

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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